
 

 

 

                 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

FINANCE ADVISORY & AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING AGENDA 

Monday, August 4, 2014 

  
Vice Chair Cheryl Miller 

Committee Member Lung Chiu 
Committee Member Ken Johnson 

Committee Member Virginia Standish 
 

Town Council Liaison Ryan Liang 



 
Finance Advisory & Audit Committee Meeting 

Monday, August 4, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. 
Palms West Chamber of Commerce, 13901 Southern Boulevard 

 

 
                                                                  Town Council Liaison Ryan Liang 
Vice Chair Cheryl Miller             Town Manager Mark Kutney 
Committee Member Lung Chiu                                                                                         Town Clerk Janet Whipple 
Committee Member  Ken Johnson                                                                
Committee Member Virginia Standish 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE/AGENDA 

 
 

1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 

b. Approval of Agenda 

c. Appointment of Chair 
 

2. CONSENT AGENDA  
 

a. Approval of Minutes – June 30, 2014 (Page 3) 

 
3. PRESENTATION - None 

 
4. OLD BUSINESS  
 

a. Municipal Financial System Software Proposals (Page 8) 
 
 

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 1 of 75



  5.   NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Approval of FY 2014  June Financial Statements (Page 9 ) 

1. Budget vs. Actual (Page 10 ) 
2. Bank Reconciliation (Page 16) 
3. General Ledger Report  (Not Included) 

 
b. Bank Statement  (Not included as part of Agenda Packet) 

c. Review of Planning and Zoning Invoices (Page 29) 

d. Review of Draft Purchasing Ordinance (Page 31) 

1.  Town Procurement Ordinance No. 2008-09 (Page 48) 
        
6.   Administrative Updates: 

      a. Reimbursements (Page 71) 

      b.  Fines Applied to Waste Pro (Page 73) 

 

7.  CLOSING COMMENTS 
 

a. Public 

b. Committee Members 

               

  8.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

The next FAAC meeting is Tuesday, August 26, 2014  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Comments Cards: Anyone from the public wishing to address the FAAC must complete a Comment Card before speaking. This must be 
filled out completely with your full name and address and given to the Town Coordinator. During the meeting, before public comments, you 
may only address the item on the agenda in which is being discussed at the time of your comment. During public comments, you may address 
any item you desire. Please remember that there is a three (3) minute time limit on all public comment. Any person who decides to appeal any 
decision of the FAAC with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will need a record of the proceedings and for such purpose, may 
need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made which included testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
Persons with disabilities requiring accommodations in order to participate should contact the Town Clerk’s Office (561-793-2418), at least 48 
hours in advance to request such accommodation. 
 
 

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 2 of 75



 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE OF A 
FINANCE ADVISORY & AUDIT 

COMMITTEE MEMBER VACANCY 
 

 
 

The Town Council for the Town of Loxahatchee Groves hereby notifies you of a Finance 
Advisory & Audit Committee (FAAC) member vacancy. 
 
Qualifications: Each member of the FAAC shall be a resident of the Town. Whenever possible, 
emphasis should be upon persons who have experience in the financial services industry. 
 
The duties of the FAAC are as follows: (Reso. No. 2009-014, 7/21/2009) 
 

1) To conduct review and analyses of projects assigned by the Town Council and make 
recommendations to the Town Council; 

2) To review and evaluate financial activities of the Town and make recommendations to 
the Town Council; 

3) To review Town policies and procedures affecting financial function, and make 
recommendations to the Town Council as deemed appropriate; 

4) To provide audit oversight, consistent with Section 218.391, Florida Statutes, including 
review of the Town’s annual audit and meeting with the Town Auditor to discuss the 
Town Audit prior to submittal to the Town Council for final approval; and 

5) To act as the Audit Committee in order to provide for auditor selection functions 
consistent with Section 218.391, Florida Statutes, upon motion of the Town Council. 

 
The FAAC meets on the 4th Monday of each month at 7:00 p.m. 
 
If you are interested in applying for this vacancy, please submit your resume by Friday, August 
29, 2014 via mail at Town Hall or via email at jwhipple@loxahatcheegrovesfl.gov  
 
For further information, please contact Town Hall (561) 793-2418.  
 
 
Posted: 7/29/14 Janet Whipple, Town Clerk 

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 3 of 75



 
Finance Advisory & Audit Committee Meeting 

Monday, June 30, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. 
Palms West Chamber of Commerce, 13901 Southern Boulevard 

 

 
 

MINUTES 
 
 

1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 

Chair Ryan called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M.     Present at the meeting were Chair Elise 
Ryan, Vice Chair Cheryl Miller, and Committee members Lung Chiu, Ken Johnson, and Virginia 
Standish.  Also in attendance were Town Manager Mark Kutney, and Town Clerk Janet Whipple. 
 

b. Approval of Agenda 

Vice Chair Miller Moved, Seconded by Member Standish to approve the Agenda.   
Motion passed, 5/0. 
 

2. CONSENT AGENDA  
 

a. Approval of Minutes – May 27, 2014  
Motion; Member Standish Moved, Seconded by Vice Chair Miller to approve the minutes of the 
May 27, 2014 Meeting.  Following discussion the minutes were amended as follows: 
 

• 6.a. Fines Applied to Waste Pro Invoicing – strike out “the march” on the first sentence of 
the paragraph. 
 

• 7.a. Keith Harris – strike out “with respect with the FAAC funding and culvert crossings” 
on the first sentence of the paragraph.  

 
 The Committee unanimously voted to approve the minutes with the noted changes.  Motion 
passed, 5/0. 
 

3. PRESENTATION - None 

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 4 of 75



 

4. OLD BUSINESS  
 

a. Review of Proposed FY2015 Capital Improvement Program CIP Fund Budget  
 

Town Manager Kutney reviewed the changes included in the FAAC Agenda Addendum #1 as 
follows: 
 

• General Fund Revenues – Ad Valorem Taxes has been increased by $22,851 to $281,360 
reflecting the final taxable value provided the PBC Property Appraiser on June 26, 2014. 

 

• Town in receipt the PBSO increase of $2803 to the Professional Services Agreement with 
the Sheriff that will be incorporated into Council’s budget.  

 
• Florida Municipal Officials Manual – Chapter 6 entitled Public Services along with a copy 

of the LGWCD Unit Map to assist in the discussion relating to road improvements by 
local governments. 

 
Committee members discussed at length the following sections of Section 6-1 Streets and Highways 
of the Florida Municipal Officials Manual in relationship to the establishment of a Town Policy for 
future road improvements: 
 

• Section B. Function Classification of Roads 
• Section C. Funding  
• Section D Acquisition of Property 
• Section E Special Assessments 

 
With respect to the Capital Improvement Plan,  Committee members questioned various topics  
regarding improvements to Collecting Canal Road such as if canal right-of-way was included in the 
Collecting Canal OGEM project costs; required verification of Town expenditure of funds on 
improvements; responsibility for payment of improvements; determine financial responsibility of 
residents residing on already improved portions of Collecting Canal; review of Town Charter 
language that provides exemptions to large landowners (90 acres); and who would be responsible for 
improvements of gaps between B and C Roads on Collecting Canal, or could the gaps be included 
by the developers as part of their improvement requirements on B Road. 
 
Town Manager Kutney advised that the current year (FY2013-2014) funding for OGEM of 
Collecting Canal Road was for the road surfacing only.  With respect to the Town Charter language 
as it relates to large landowners, Mr. Kutney advised that he would need to research that matter.  
With respect to developers paying for the improvements on the gaps on Collecting Canal Road 
between B and C Roads, Kutney advised that those improvements were not included in the 
negotiations and agreements between the Town and developers.  And, finally Mr. Kutney pointed 
out that the proposed Budget does not include any funding for improvements to Collecting Canal 
Road at this time. 
 

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 5 of 75



Following question from Member Standish, Town Manager Kutney advised that the Town will 
assume responsibility for B Road after improvements are completed.   

 
         Member Chiu raised the question about Council determination on how Collecting Canal Road  

  Improvements would be funded. Following a question from Vice Chair Miller, the Committee 
agreed that the Town Council has a responsibility to develop a Policy.  After a lengthy discussion, 
the Committee generally agreed that the Town must establish a policy.  Committee members 
discussed various alternatives, but it was generally agreed that the FAAC should recommend that the 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves should have an established policy in place regarding payment for 
initial road improvements.   

 
 Motion: Member Johnson Moved, Seconded by Vice Chair Miller to recommend a stand-alone 
policy, and ensure that the Town “should consistently adhere to that policy as to have no such 
announced policy or to make exceptions to an announced policy is to open the door to accusations of 
favoritism or unequal treatment,” as recommended in the 2013 Florida Public Officials Manual.   
The vote on the motion was, 5/0.  Motion passed. 

 
The Committee reviewed the FY2015 Proposed Capital Improvement Fund Budget and 
recommended the following changes: 
  

• Surveying Town Roads - $100,000   
• OGEM Collecting Canal Road – $0.00 
• Okeechobee and D Road Traffic Light - $290,000 
• Trails - $120,000 
• D Road to Southern Boulevard - $0.00  
• Purchase Roads from LGWCD - $28,934 

            
         Member Standish advised that her only concern is the budgeted amount for surveying may be to   
         low. 
         

   Member Chiu made the following suggestions to be included in the report to the Town Council with 
respect to development of a policy for road improvements, and capital improvement plan: 

 

• Workshop Meeting to receive input from residents regarding the priorities of capital 
projects (Development of the Capital Project Improvement Plan) 
 

• Town Council should adopt a Capital Projects/Improvement Plan (Plan) 
 

• The Plan should be meaningful, practical, include timelines, and should have 
1.  Engineering estimates 
2. Funding sources (General Fund, Grants, Loan, Bonds, Assessments, etc.) 
3. Gap (Shortage of funding) 

 
             The Council should consider developing a policy regarding how dollars should be spent on road   
             improvements, or other projects.     
 

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 6 of 75



             The policy should ensure the following: 
 

1. Equity for all residents 
2. Sufficiency of funding 
3. A practical timeline for projects 
4. Changes to the Plan must be approved by the Council  
 

b. Review of Procurement Ordinance 2008-009 – Postponed 
 

c. Municipal Financial System Software Proposals   
 

Motion: Member Standish Moved, Seconded by Member Johnson to postpone this item to a later date.  The 
vote on the motion passed, 5/0. 

 
       5.   NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Approval of FY 2014  May Financial Statements  

1. Budget vs. Actual  
2. Bank Reconciliation  
3. General Ledger Detail  

 
b. Bank Statement  

The Committee reviewed the matter regarding a Counterfeit Check that was processed.  Chair 
Ryan advised that the Town’s Bank Statement will no longer be included in the FAAC Agenda 
Packet, and instead will be provided as a handout to Committee Members.  The Committee was 
advised that Positive Pay will be implemented effective in July.  With respect to providing 
information to residents, Member Johnson suggested that if citizens would like copies of the 
Bank Statements going forward they should contact the Town Hall to review or receive a copy of 
Statements. 
 
Motion:  Member Vice Chair Miller, Seconded by Member Johnson to approve the May 2014 
Financial Statements.  Motion passed unanimously, 5/0. 
 
Standish questioned page 80 of 100 reflects a $200.00 payment for Zoning Confirmation.  Town 
Manager Kutney advised that no legal expenses were incurred with respect to the Zoning 
Confirmation request.   
 

c. Review of Planning and Zoning Invoices 

No comments.  
 

        
6.   Administrative Updates: 

      Town Manager Kutney advised that the Town had received $10,000 from Atlantic Land Design for 
the Simon Cost Recovery account, and that PBSC will be submitting additional funds to their Cost 
Recovery Account after the beginning of their fiscal year in July.   

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 7 of 75



 

7.  CLOSING COMMENTS 
 

a. Public 

b. Committee Members 

             

  8.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
       Motion:  Member Johnson Moved, Seconded by Member Standish to adjourn the meeting at 8:30  
       P.M.  The vote on the motion passed unanimously, 5/0. 
 
 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
     Perla D. Underwood, UMSG     Elise Ryan, Chair 
        
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 8 of 75



Vendor Name Installation: Conversion: Training: Annual 
Fee:

Total 
Startup 
Costs:

Total 
Annual 

Fee:

Total 
First 12 
Month 

Monthly 
Cost Year 

2:

Monthly 
Cost Year 

3:

Monthly 
Cost Year 

4:

Monthly 
Cost Year 

5:

Blackbaud $0 $2,700 $1,299 $7,920 $11,919 $11,919 $11,919 $8,690 $8,690 $8,690 $8,690 $46,679 

Springbrook $15,760 $7,200 $18,300 $15,760 $41,260 $15,760 $41,260 $17,560 $17,560 $17,560 $17,560 $111,500 

Tyler Incode $3,500 $17,100 $17,500 $9,726 $38,100 $11,886 $49,986 $11,886 $11,886 $11,886 $11,886 $97,530 

Waypoints 
A f d

$9,000 $0 $0 $6,984 $7,484 $6,984 $17,048 $6,984 $6,984 $6,984 $6,984 $44,984 

Town of Loxahatchee Groves Municipal Financial System (SaaS)

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 9 of 75



 Transportation Fund Budget Year-to-Date %
FIRST LOCAL OPTION FUEL TAX (6 CENT) 249,245         165,812         66.5%
SECOND LOCAL OPTION FUEL (5 CENT) 117,326         80,062           68.2%
CONTRIBUTION FROM GENERAL FUND -                     -                    

TRANSFER FROM FUND BALANCE 856,191         2,616               
Total Revenues 1,222,762    248,491         20.3%
TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS (6 CT) MAINT. 6,000             3,656               60.9%
TOWN ROADS (6 CT) MAINT. 93,245           55,537             59.6%
DISTRICT ROADS (6 CT) MAINT. 150,000         2,915               1.9%
ROADS AND STREETS (5 CT) -                     -                

SPECIAL PROJECTS (6 CT) -                     -                   0.0%
148th TERR BRIDGE(5)/CULVERT  -                     -                
CONSTRUCTION TOWN RDS & STREETS -                     -                

TRANSFER TO CIP FUND 973,517 186,382         19.1%
Total Expenses 1,222,762    248,491         20.3%
Excess(deficiency) -                  -                    
Solid Waste Fund Budget Year-to-Date %

SOLID WASTE ASSESSMENTS 432,873         404,499           93.4%
DISCOUNT FEES (12,103)          (13,727)            113.4%

Revenues Budget Year-to-Date % SWA RECYCLING INCOME 8,000             2,162               27.0%
AD VALOREM TAXES @ 1.2000 197,297          204,684          103.7% CONTRIBUTION FROM GENERAL FUND -                 -                   
ELECTRIC UTILITY TAX          203,000          157,882          77.8% Total Revenues 428,770         392,934           91.6%
COMMUNICATION SERVICES TAX    125,446          68,160            54.3%
COUNTY OCCUPATIONAL LICENSES  5,000              4,477              89.5% CONTRACTUAL-WASTE OVERSIGHT          7,010             19,622             279.9%
FPL FRANCHISE FEE 200,000          105,863          52.9% PBC ADMINSTRATION FEE 1% 4,460             3,743               83.9%
HAULER LICENSE FEE 2,000              3,805              190.3% POSTAGE & FREIGHT 500                -                       0.0%
PBC WATER UTILITY FRANCHISE 5,050              3,716              73.6% SOLID WASTE CONTRACTOR 415,800         324,673           78.1%
PLANNING & ZONING PERMIT FEES 100                 4,462              4461.5% OTHER SANITATION SERVICES -                     -                       0.0%
STATE REVENUE SHARING 85,446            57,948            67.8%  LEGAL ADVERTISING             1,000             700                   70.0%
HALF CENT SALES TAX 224,014          159,495          71.2% MANAGEMENT FEES -                     -                       
GENERAL GOVERNMENT CHARGES 7,000              2,493              35.6% Total Expenses 428,770         348,738           81.3%
COST RECOVERY FEES 25,000            21,471            85.9% Excess(deficiency) 44,196             
COURT FINES 2,500              -                      Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Fund Budget Year-to-Date %
CODE ENFORCEMENT FINES 5,000              9,648              193.0% CONTRIBUTION FROM TRANSPORTATION FUND 973,517       186,382           19.1%
INTEREST 5,000              125                 2.5% TRANSFER FROM FUND BALANCE 829,047         0.0%

OTHER MISC. INCOME 5,000              2,992              59.8%
TRANSFER FROM  FUND BALANCE* -                      -                      Total Revenues 1,802,564      186,382           10.3%

Total Revenues 1,096,853    807,220          73.6% Develop Town Hall Alternatives -                  -                    -                
Surveying Town Roads 100,000         9,653               9.7%

Expenditures Budget Year-to-Date % OGEM Collecting Canal Road 943,630         -                   0.0%
LEGISLATIVE       103,885          35,246            33.9% Okeechobee and D Road Traffic Light 250,000         6,000               2.4%
EXECUTIVE 285,230          209,101          73.3% Town Roads OGEM Projects 100,000         141,836           141.8%
FINANICAL AND ADMINSTRATIVE 24,250            17,610            72.6% Trails 80,000           -                   0.0%
LEGAL COUNSEL 90,000            66,929            74.4% D Road to Southern Blvd 300,000         -                   0.0%
COMPREHENSIVE PLANNING & ZONING 170,042          125,093          73.6% Purchase Roads from LGWCD 28,934           28,893             -
OTHER GENERAL GOVERNMENT 128,665          66,966            52.0% 1,802,564      186,382           10.3%
LAW ENFORCEMENT 280,781          210,211          74.9% Contract Services Expenditures
PUBLIC WORKS 14,000            1,923              13.7% Expenditures Budget Year-to-Date %

Total Expenditures 1,096,853       733,078          66.8% Waste Pro 415,800         259,546           62.4%

Excess(deficiency) -                        74,142            Palm Beach County Sheriff 280,281         163,498           58.3%
Underwood Management Services Group 373,148         236,830           63.5%
Goren, Cherof, Doody, Ezrol 90,000           69,600             77.3%

YTD-Total Funds Expen. Budget Tew & Associates 35,000           17,858             51.0%
Land Research Management 20,000           17,033             85.2%

Expenditures Budget Year-to-Date % Engineering Services* 140,000         85,846             61.3%
Total Townwide Budget 4,550,949       1,516,689       33.3% Frank Schiola 25,000           24,552             98.2%

YEE's Corporation 10,800           8,100               75.0%
Loxahatchee Water Control District 178,934 65,644             36.7%
Total Expenses 1,568,963       948,506            60.5%
* Keshavarez & Assoc.; A&B Engineering; Simmon & White
Represents consumption of fund balance.  This is not true revenue by definition or reflected
 in GL in transactions

(75% of year elapsed)

Town of Loxahatchee Groves
Financial Activity Report as of June 30, 2014

General Fund Revenue Budget Selected Other Funds

General Fund Revenues

General Fund Expenditures

AD VALOREM TAXES 
FPL FRAN FEE 

WATER FRAN FEE ELEC UTIL TAX 

COMM SVCS TAX 

STATE REV SHARE 

1/2 SALES TAX 

PBC\OCC BUS TAX 
GEN GOVT 
CHARGES 

COST RECOV FEES 

CODE ENFORC 
FINES 

PLAN ZON PERMIT 
FEES 

INTEREST 

OTH MISC 
INCOME 

TRANS FR SANI 
FUND 

 -  200,000  400,000  600,000  800,000  1,000,000

AD VALOREM TAXES
ELEC UTIL TAX

COMM SVCS TAX
PBC/OCC BUS TAX

FPL FRAN FEE
HAULER LIC FEE

WATER FRAN FEE
PLAN ZON PERM FEES

STATE REV SHARE
1/2 SALES TAX

GEN GOVT CHARGES
COST RECOV FEES

COURT FINES
CODE ENFORC FINES

INTEREST
OTHER MISC. INCOME
TRANS FR  FUND BAL

General Fund Revenue 

Budget YTD

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 10 of 75



75% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

001-311-100-000 Ad Valorem Taxes 3,418.76              204,683.59      -                      197,297                 7,386.59                   103.7%
Ad Valorem Taxes Subtotal 3,418.76            204,683.59    197,297               7,386.59                 

001-314-100-000 Electric Utility Tax 19,834.39            157,881.98      -                      203,000                 (45,118.02)               77.8%
001-315-100-000 Communications Services 8,256.08              68,159.50        -                      125,446                 (57,286.50)               54.3%
001-316-200-000 County Occupational License 75.29                   4,476.62          -                      5,000                     (523.38)                    89.5%

Local Taxes Subtotal 28,165.76          230,518.10    -                    333,446               (102,927.90)           

001-323-100-000 FPL Franchise Fee 14,622.32            105,863.43      -                      200,000                 (94,136.57)               52.9%
001-323-125-000 Haulers License Fee -                       3,805.00          -                      2,000                     1,805.00                   190.3%
001-323-300-000 PBC Water Utility Franchise -                       3,716.39          -                      5,050                     (1,333.61)                 73.6%
001-329-100-000 Planning & Zoning Permit 440.00                 4,461.50          -                      100                        4,361.50                   4461.5%

Permits, Franchise Fees & Special Subtotal 15,062.32          117,846.32    -                    207,150               (89,303.68)             

001-335-120-000 State Revenue Sharing 6,438.71              57,948.39        -                      85,446                   (27,497.61)               67.8%
001-335-180-000 Half Cent Sales Tax 19,754.99            159,494.68      -                      224,014                 (64,519.32)               71.2%

Intergovernmentall Revenue Subtotal 26,193.70          217,443.07    309,460               (92,016.93)             70.3%

001-341-000-000 General Government Charges -                       2,493.30          -                      7,000                     (4,506.70)                 35.6%
001-343-349-000 Cost Recovery Fees -                       21,471.41        -                      25,000                   (3,528.59)                 85.9%

Charges for Services Subtotal -                     23,964.71      -                    32,000                 (8,035.29)               

001-351-100-000 Court Fines -                       -                   -                    2,500                     (2,500.00)                 
001-354-100-000 Code Enforcement Fines -                       9,647.50          -                      5,000                     4,647.50                   193.0%

Code Enforcement Fines Subtotal -                     9,647.50        -                    7,500                   2,147.50                 

001-361-100-000 Interest 16.75                   124.75             -                      5,000                     (4,875.25)                 2.5%
001-369-000-000 Other Misc Income -                       2,991.54          -                      5,000                     (2,008.46)                 59.8%

Other Misc Revenue Subtotal 16.75                 3,116.29        -                    10,000                 (6,883.71)               

001-399-000-000 Transfer from Fund Balance* -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            
Other Non-operating Sources Subotal -                     -                 -                       -                          

Grand Total Revenue 72,857.29          807,219.58    -                    1,096,853            (289,633.42)           73.6%

BUDGET VS ACTUAL
AS OF June 30, 2014

General Fund
Revenues

UMSG,LLC
Page 1 of 6

Corrected: 7/30/2014
FAAC Agenda Packet Page 11 of 75



75% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

001-511-310-000 Professional Services -                       -                   -                      60,000                   60,000.00                 0.0%
001-511-400-000 Travel -                       -                   -                      3,000                     3,000.00                   0.0%
001-511-492-000 Other Operating Expenses -                       196.10             -                      1,500                     1,303.90                   13.1%
001-511-499-000 Other Current Charges - Council Reimbursement 2,500.00              25,000.00        -                      30,000                   5,000.00                   83.3%
001-511-500-000 Education & Training -                       -                   -                      1,000                     1,000.00                   0.0%
001-511-510-000 Office Supplies -                       -                   -                      300                        300.00                      0.0%
001-511-520-000 Operating Supplies -                       -                   -                      300                        300.00                      0.0%
001-511-540-000 Books, Publications & Subscriptions 310.00                 4,549.63          -                      2,435                     (2,114.63)                 186.8%
001-511-820-000 Special Events/Contributions -                       5,500.00          -                      5,350                     (150.00)                    102.8%

Legislative Total 2,810.00            35,245.73      -                    103,885               68,639.27               33.9%

001-512-340-000 Other Services 22,008.83            198,079.47      -                      264,106                 66,026.53                 75.0%
001-512-400-000 Travel -                       657.44             -                      1,000                     342.56                      65.7%
001-512-420-000 Postage & Freight - NEW 16.14                   371.04             -                      1,000                     628.96                      37.1%
001-512-490-000 Legal Advertising -                       141.60             -                      1,000                     858.40                      14.2%
001-512-492-000 Other Operating Expenses -                       287.04             -                      944                        656.96                      30.4%
001-512-493-000 Election Expense -                       247.50             -                      8,010                     7,762.50                   3.1%
001-512-510-000 Office Supplies 811.22                 8,867.00          -                      8,600                     (267.00)                    103.1%
001-512-540-000 Books, Publications & Subscriptions -                       449.68             -                      570                        120.32                      78.9%

Executive Total 22,836.19          209,100.77    285,230               76,129.23               73.3%

001-513-320-000 Accounting and Auditing -                       16,700.00        -                      18,000                   1,300.00                   92.8%
001-513-470-000 Printing and Binding -                       -                   -                      4,750                     4,750.00                   0.0%
001-513-490-000 Legal Advertising -                       910.00             -                      1,500                     590.00                      60.7%
001-513-493-000 Election Expense (moved) -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%

Financial & Administrative Total -                     17,610.00      24,250                 6,640.00                 72.6%

001-514-310-000 Professional Services 4,168.45              66,928.70        -                      90,000                   23,071.30                 74.4%
Legal Total 4,168.45            66,928.70      90,000                 23,071.30               74.4%

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
BUDGET VS ACTUAL
AS OF June 30, 2014

General Fund
Expenditures

UMSG,LLC
Page 2 of 6

Corrected: 7/30/2014
FAAC Agenda Packet Page 12 of 75



75% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

001-515-310-000 Professional Services 10,760.00            31,664.00        -                      40,000                   8,336.00                   79.2%
001-515-340-000 Other Services 6,586.83              59,280.47        -                      79,042                   19,761.53                 75.0%
001-515-343-000 Planning & Zoning Contract 718.75                 1,595.00          -                      20,000                   18,405.00                 8.0%
001-515-347-000 Comprehensive Plan -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%
001-515-349-000 Cost Recovery Expenditure 684.50                 22,396.41        -                      25,000                   2,603.59                   89.6%
001-515-490-000 Legal Advertising - NEW 825.60                 10,157.44        -                      6,000                     (4,157.44)                 169.3%

Comprehensive Planning & Zoning Total 19,575.68          125,093.32    170,042               44,948.68               73.6%

001-519-315-000 Special Magistrate 465.00                 8,068.63          -                      16,000                   7,931.37                   50.4%
001-519-354-000 Code Compliance 2,857.50              15,140.25        -                      41,000                   25,859.75                 36.9%
001-519-410-000 Communications Services 678.35                 5,109.94          -                      5,700                     590.06                      89.6%
001-519-440-000 Rentals and Leases 1,285.86              13,569.45        -                      20,000                   6,430.55                   67.8%
001-519-450-000 Insurance -                       15,111.00        -                      18,000                   2,889.00                   84.0%
001-519-460-000 Repair & Maint - Building 725.00                 2,325.00          -                      2,450                     125.00                      94.9%
001-519-470-000 Printing and Binding -                       -                   -                      -                            0.0%
001-519-480-000 Promotional Activities -                       -                   -                      -                            0.0%
001-519-490-000 Computer Repair 219.93                 959.06             -                      2,500                     1,540.94                   38.4%
001-519-491-000 Computer Services 1,810.99              4,256.23          -                      3,631                     (625.23)                    117.2%
001-519-494-000 Inspector General Office -                       2,218.00          -                      5,280                     3,062.00                   42.0%
001-519-810-000 Aids to Govt Agencies Grant - LGWCD -                       -                   -                      -                            
001-519-820-000 Loxahatchee Groves CERT -                       208.00             -                      2,000                     1,792.00                   10.4%
001-519-900-000 Transfer toTransportation Fund -                       -                   -                      0.0%
001-519-910-000 Transfer to Sanitation Fund
001-519-920-000 Transfer to Capital Projects
001-519-990-000 Contingency -                       -                   -                      12,104                   12,104.00                 0.0%

Other Governmental Services Total 8,042.63            66,965.56      128,665               61,699.44               52.0%

001-521-341-000 Professional Services-PBSO 23,356.75            210,210.75      -                      280,281                 70,070.25                 75.0%
001-521-342-000 Contractual-ADDL PBSO -                       -                   -                      500                        500.00                      0.0%

Law Enforcement Total 23,356.75          210,210.75    280,781               70,570.25               75.0%

001-539-310-000 Other Services -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%
001-539-340-000 Professional Services 573.21                 1,922.88          -                      14,000                   12,077.12                 13.7%

Public Works Total 573.21               1,922.88        14,000                 12,077.12               13.7%

Grand Total Expenditure 81,362.91          733,077.71    -                    1,096,853            363,775.29             66.8%

Net Revenue (8,505.62)           74,141.87      -                         

BUDGET VS ACTUAL
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES

AS OF June 30, 2014

General Fund
Expenditures

UMSG,LLC
Page 3 of 6

Corrected: 7/30/2014
FAAC Agenda Packet Page 13 of 75



75% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

101-312-410-000 1st Local Option Fuel Tax (1 to 6 cent) 21,974.89            165,811.82      -                      249,245                 (83,433.18)               66.5%
101-312-420-000 2nd Local Option Fuel Tax (1 to 5 cent) 10,113.90            80,062.46        -                      117,326                 (37,263.54)               68.2%
101-363-990-000 Contribution from General Fund -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%
101-399-000-000 Transfer from Fund Balance -                       2,616.33          -                      856,191                 (853,574.67)             0.0%

Total Revenue 32,088.79          248,490.61    1,222,762            (974,271)                20.3%
Represents consumption of fund balance.  This is not true revenue by definition or reflected in GL in transactions

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

101-541-467-000 Traffic Control Signs (6 ct) Maint. -                       3,656.00          -                      6,000                     2,344.00                   60.9%
101-541-468-000 Non-District Roads (6 ct) Maint. 13,292.58            55,537.48        -                      93,245                   37,707.52                 59.6%
101-541-469-000 District Roads (6 ct) Maint. -                       2,915.00          -                      150,000                 147,085.00               0.0%
101-541-631-000 Road and Streets (5 cent) -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%
101-541-632-000 Special Projects (6 cent) -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%
101-541-634-000 148th Terr Bridge (5)/Culvert -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%
101-541-636-000 Construct Town Rds & Sts -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%
101-541-920-000 Transfer to Capital Projects 118,873.63          186,382.13      -                      973,517                 787,134.87               19.1%
101-541-990-000 Transfer to Fund Balance -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%
101-541-996-000 Transfer to Fund Balance -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%

Total Expenditure 132,166.21        248,490.61    -                    1,222,762            974,271                  20.3%

Net Revenue (100,077.42)       (0.00)              -                       

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
BUDGET VS ACTUAL
AS OF June 30, 2014

Transportation Fund
Revenues

Transportation Fund
Expenditures

UMSG,LLC
Page 4 of 6

Corrected: 7/30/2014
FAAC Agenda Packet Page 14 of 75



75% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

305-363-990-000 Contributions from General Fund -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%
305-363-991-000 Contributions from Transportation Fund 118,873.63          186,382.13      -                      973,517                 (958,447.00)             1.6%
305-399-000-000 Transfer from Fund Balance -                       -                   -                      829,047                 (829,047.00)             0.0%

Total Revenue 118,873.63        186,382.13    -                    1,802,564            (1,787,494.00)        10.3%

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

305-519-600-000 Develop Town Hall Alternatives -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%
305-541-610-000 Surveying Town Roads -                       9,653                -                      100,000                 90,347.00                 9.7%
305-541-620-000 OGEM Collecting Canal Road -                       -                   -                      943,630                 943,630.00               0.0%
305-541-630-000 Okeechobee and D Road Traffic Light -                       6,000.00          -                      250,000                 244,000.00               2.4%
305-541-640-000 Town Roads OGEM Projects 89,980.63            141,836.13      -                      100,000                 (41,836.13)               141.8%
305-541-650-000 Trails -                       -                   -                      80,000                   80,000.00                 0.0%
305-541-652-000 D Road to Southern Blvd -                       -                   -                      300,000                 300,000.00               0.0%
305-541-654-000 Purchase Roads from LGWCD 28,893.00            28,893.00        -                      28,934                   41.00                        99.9%

Total Expenditure 118,873.63        186,382.13    -                    1,802,564            1,616,182               10.3%

Net Revenue -                     -                 -                       

Capital Improvement Program

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
BUDGET VS ACTUAL
AS OF June 30, 2014

Revenues

Capital Improvement Program
Expenditures

UMSG,LLC
Page 5 of 6

Corrected: 7/30/2014
FAAC Agenda Packet Page 15 of 75



75% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

405-323-125-000 Haulers Licensing Fee - MOVED TO GF -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%
405-325-205-000 Solid Waste Assessments 7,620.87              404,499.20      -                      432,873                 (28,373.80)               93.4%
405-325-206-000 Discount Fees -                       (13,727.45)       -                      (12,103)                  (1,624.45)                 113.4%
405-343-120-000 SWA Recycling Income -                       2,162.15          -                      8,000                     (5,837.85)                 27.0%
405-363-990-000 Contributions from General Fund -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%

Total Revenue 7,620.87            392,933.90    -                    428,770               (35,836.10)             91.6%

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

405-534-345-000 Contractual - Waste Over 1,575.00              19,622.12        -                      7,010                     (12,612.12)               279.9%
405-534-346-000 PBC Administration Fee 1 76.21                   3,742.79          -                      4,460                     717.21                      83.9%
405-534-420-000 Postage & Freight -                       -                   -                      500                        500.00                      0.0%
405-534-434-000 Solid Waste Contractor 67,855.00            324,673.14      -                      415,800                 91,126.86                 78.1%
405-534-436-000 Other Sanitation Service -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%
405-534-490-000 Legal Advertising -                       700.00             -                      1,000                     300.00                      70.0%
405-534-595-000 TOLG Management Fee -                       -                   -                      -                         -                            0.0%

Total Expenditure 69,506.21          348,738.05    -                    428,770               80,031.95               81.3%

Net Revenue (61,885.34)         44,195.85      -                       
-                               -                                   

Note:  YTD Fines credited to Service Provider invoicing - $21,600.00

Solid Waste Fund
Revenues

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
BUDGET VS ACTUAL
AS OF June 30, 2014

UMSG,LLC
Page 6 of 6

Corrected: 7/30/2014
FAAC Agenda Packet Page 16 of 75



Beg Bank Acct Balance 6/1/2014 $3,342,856.70

Deposits and Other Credits
      Deposits 112,473.99    
      Interest 16.75             112,490.74       

Checks 283,412.12    
Other Withdrawals 47.00             

283,459.12       

Ending Bank Acct Balance 6/30/2014 $3,171,888.32

Fraudulent Check Presented (28,000.00)        
Deposit Errors - 2 deposits on 4/25/14 358.43              
Total of Outstanding Checks 500.00              

Adjusted Acct Balance $3,199,029.89

Outstanding Checks
Check # Date Cut Amount Check# Date Cut Amount

5974 06/20/14 500.00         

Book Activity:

Beginning Book Bal 3,369,498.20$     

Acct Activity 
   Gen Fund (8,505.62)             
   Road Fund 18,796.21            
   Cap Imp Fund (118,873.63)         
   Sanitation Fund (61,885.34)           
Ending Book Bal 3,199,029.82$     

Col Total 500.00         -                 
Total Outstanding Checks 500.00           

For Period Ending 06/30/14

Town of Loxahatchee Groves - Bank Reconciliation
Wells Fargo 

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 17 of 75



Check Check O/S Cleared
Number Date Payee Amount Status Checks Checks

5935 5/23/2014 David Browning 500.00           Cleared 500.00         
5936 5/23/2014 Ron Jarriel 500.00           Cleared 500.00         
5937 5/23/2014 Ryan Liang 500.00           Cleared 500.00         
5938 5/23/2014 Tom Goltzene 500.00           Cleared 500.00         
5939 5/23/2014 Jim Rockett 500.00           Cleared 500.00         
5940 5/23/2014 Yees Corporation 900.00           Cleared 900.00         
5941 5/23/2014 Underwood Management Services 28,594.66      Cleared 28,594.66    
5942 5/23/2014 Mark A. Kutney -                 Voided
5943 5/23/2014 Everglades Trading 317.12           Cleared 317.12         
5944 5/23/2014 Loxahatchee Groves Water Contr 2,044.90        Cleared 2,044.90      
5945 5/23/2014 TGI Office Automation LLC 399.45           Cleared 399.45         
5946 5/23/2014 TGI Office Automation 168.11           Cleared 168.11         
5947 5/23/2014 Tew and Taylor, Inc. 2,160.00        Cleared 2,160.00      
5948 5/23/2014 Mark A. Kutney 146.67           Cleared 146.67         
5949 6/4/2014 void -                 Voided -              
5950 6/4/2014 Waste Pro of Palm Beach 33,577.50      Cleared 33,577.50    
5951 6/4/2014 Underwood Management Services Grou 2,600.00        Cleared 2,600.00      
5952 6/4/2014 Nestle Pure Life 21.75             Cleared 21.75           
5953 6/4/2014 Karen Hainline 400.00           Cleared 400.00         
5954 6/4/2014 Cox Media Group 564.16           Cleared 564.16         
5955 6/4/2014 Keshavarz and Associates 16,729.00      Cleared 16,729.00    
5956 6/4/2014 Beverly Kuipers 51.11             Cleared 51.11           
5957 6/4/2014 Gary R. Nikolitis, PBC Prop. A 150.00           Cleared 150.00         
5958 6/4/2014 Land Research Mangement 718.75           Cleared 718.75         
5959 6/4/2014 Loxahatchee Groves Water Control Dis 41,870.58      Cleared 41,870.58    
5960 6/4/2014 Payment Remittance Center 412.93           Cleared 412.93         
5961 6/4/2014 Goren, Cherof, Doody, & Ezrol 4,852.95        Cleared 4,852.95      
5962 6/4/2014 Frank Schiola 2,362.50        Cleared 2,362.50      
5963 6/4/2014 e-City Services LLC 1,500.00        Cleared 1,500.00      
5964 6/4/2014 void -                 Voided -              
5965 6/4/2014 void -                 Voided -              
5966 6/4/2014 North Florida Emulsions 65,161.63      Cleared 65,161.63    
5967 6/4/2014 North Florida Emulsions 16,250.00      Cleared 16,250.00    
5968 6/20/2014 Waste Pro 34,277.50      Cleared 34,277.50    
5969 6/20/2014 Yees Corporation 900.00           Cleared 900.00         
5970 6/20/2014 Underwood Management Services Grou 28,595.66      Cleared 28,595.66    
5971 6/20/2014 Caldwell Pacetti Edwards Schoech & 285.00           Cleared 285.00         
5972 6/20/2014 Cox Media Group 261.44           Cleared 261.44         
5973 6/20/2014 Everglades Trading 17.18             Cleared 17.18           
5974 6/20/2014 David Browning 500.00           OS 500.00       
5975 6/20/2014 Tom Goltzene 500.00           Cleared 500.00         
5976 6/20/2014 Ryan Liang 500.00           Cleared 500.00         
5977 6/20/2014 Jim Rockett 500.00           Cleared 500.00         
5978 6/20/2014 AAA American Carpet 325.00           Cleared 325.00         
5979 6/20/2014 AT&T 418.48           Cleared 418.48         
5980 6/20/2014 Government Finance Officers Associati 160.00           Cleared 160.00         
5981 6/20/2014 PBSO 23,356.75      Cleared 23,356.75    
5982 6/20/2014 TGI Office Automation LLC 556.76           Cleared 556.76         
5983 6/20/2014 TGI Office Automation 168.11           Cleared 168.11         
5984 6/20/2014 Ron Jarriel 500.00           Cleared 500.00         
5985 6/20/2014 Tew and Taylor, Inc. 2,880.00        Cleared 2,880.00      
5986 6/20/2014 Payment Remittance Center 987.38           Cleared 987.38         

6445 28,000.00      Cleared -              

June 2014 Checks Written 282,412.12    

CHECKS WRITTEN
CLEARED/OUTSTANDING

June 2014

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 18 of 75



Period Date
Applied Deposited Description Account Amount Total
GENERAL FUND

Jun-14 06/09/14 Interest 001-361-100-000 16.75                   16.75                       
Jun-14 06/11/14 Property Tax Distribution 001-311-100-000 3,418.76              
Jun-14 06/11/14 County Occupational Licenses 001-316-200-000 75.29                   3,494.05                  
Jun-14 06/12/14 Permits 001-329-100-000 440.00                 440.00                     
Jun-14 06/16/14 FPL Electric Utility Tax June 001-314-100-000 19,834.39            19,834.39                
Jun-14 06/19/14 CST Distribution, June 001-315-100-000 8,256.08              8,256.08                  
Jun-14 06/20/14 State Revenue Sharing, June 001-335-120-000 6,438.71              6,438.71                  
Jun-14 06/24/14 Half Cent Sales Tax, June 001-335-180-000 19,754.99            19,754.99                
Jun-14 06/30/14 FPL Franchise Pmt, June 001-323-100-000 14,622.32            14,622.32                

72,857.29            72,857.29                

ROAD FUND
Jun-14 06/23/14 Gas Tax Distribution, June 101-312-410-000 21,974.89            
Jun-14 06/23/14 Gas Tax Distribution, June 101-312-420-000 10,113.90            32,088.79                

32,088.79            32,088.79                

SANITATION FUND
Jun-14 06/11/14 Solid Waste Assessment, PBC 405-325-205-000 7,620.87              
Jun-14 06/11/14 Solid Waste Collection Fee 405-534-346-000 (76.21)                 7,544.66                  

7,544.66              7,544.66                  

TOTAL DEPOSITED IN JUNE 2014 112,490.74          112,490.74              
Credit Back To April Deposit Errors -                      -                           
Total Net Deposited 112,490.74          112,490.74              

LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
DEPOSIT DETAILS

REVENUES RECEIVED IN JUNE 2014

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 19 of 75



Check # Date Vendor Name/Description Account Charged Item Amount Check Total
5949 6/4/2014 void -              
5950 6/4/2014 Waste Pro of Palm Beach

Residential Monthly Service 405-534-434-000 33,577.50    33,577.50     

5951 6/4/2014 Underwood Management Services Group
ULDC Review/Land Use Prob 001-515-310-000 2,600.00      2,600.00       

5952 6/4/2014 Nestle Pure Life
Water 001-519-440-000 21.75           21.75             

5953 6/4/2014 Karen Hainline
April and May 2014 Cleaning 001-519-460-000 400.00         400.00          

5954 6/4/2014 Cox Media Group
6/4/2014 Public Hearing 001-515-490-000 244.24         

Ordinance No. 2014-04 001-515-490-000 319.92         564.16           

5955 6/4/2014 Keshavarz and Associates
6/4/2014 Work Authorization No. 14-1037 305-541-640-000 8,569.00      
6/4/2014 Work Authorization No. 13-1020 001-515-310-000 7,305.00      

Work Authorization No. 13-1017 001-515-310-000 855.00         16,729.00      

5956 6/4/2014 Beverly Kuipers
6/4/2014 Reimbursement- Costco 001-512-510-000 41.96           

Reimbursement- USPS 001-512-420-000 9.15             51.11             

5957 6/4/2014 Gary R. Nikolitis, PBC Prop. A
2013 Tax Roll 001-511-540-000 150.00         150.00           

5958 6/4/2014 Land Research Mangement
Gun Control Ordinance 001-515-343-000 718.75         718.75           

5959 6/4/2014 Loxahatchee Groves Water Control Dis
6/4/2014 Compton Rd. and "F" Road 101-541-468-000 3,199.78      
6/4/2014 Work Auth. 14-0402 ROR 101-541-468-000 9,777.80      

Reimbursement-Road Improvement 305-541-654-000 28,893.00    41,870.58      

5960 6/4/2014 Payment Remittance Center
6/4/2014 Underwood; 48562006101497 001-519-490-000 79.99           
6/4/2014 Underwood; 48562006101497 001-519-491-000 133.00         
6/4/2014 Underwood; 48562006101497 001-519-490-000 59.95           
6/4/2014 Underwood; 48562006101497 001-512-420-000 6.99             

Underwood; 48562006101497 001-519-491-000 133.00         412.93           

5961 6/4/2014 Goren, Cherof, Doody, & Ezrol
6/4/2014 General Matters 001-514-310-000 4,001.95      
6/4/2014 CR- Wellington Edge 001-515-349-000 55.50           
6/4/2014 CR- Day 001-515-349-000 333.00         
6/4/2014 CR- Solar Sports Systems 001-515-349-000 296.00         

USDC Case 001-514-310-000 166.50         4,852.95        

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
EXPENSES DETAIL

June 2014

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 20 of 75



Check # Date Vendor Name/Description Account Charged Item Amount Check Total

5962 6/4/2014 Frank Schiola
6/4/2014 Solid Waste 405-534-345-000 1,575.00      
6/4/2014 Public Works 001-539-340-000 315.00         
6/4/2014 Transportation 101-541-468-000 315.00         

Code Enforcement/Sign Removal 001-519-354-000 157.50         2,362.50        

5963 6/4/2014 e-City Services LLC
Annual Website Hosting 001-519-491-000 1,500.00      1,500.00        

5964 6/4/2014 void -              -                 
5965 6/4/2014 void -              -                 

5966 6/4/2014 North Florida Emulsions
Double Micro-Surfacing 305-541-640-000 65,161.63    65,161.63      

5967 6/4/2014 North Florida Emulsions
Double Micro-Surfacing 305-541-640-000 16,250.00    16,250.00      

EFT 6/5/2014 FDGL Lease Payment
Fdgl Lease Pymnt 001-519-440-000 32.00           32.00             

EFT 6/11/2014 Wells Fargo 001-519-440-000 15.00           15.00             
Bankcard Fee

5968 6/20/2014 Waste Pro
Residential Monthly Service 405-534-434-000 34,277.50    34,277.50      

5969 6/20/2014 Yees Corporation
Town Hall Office Lease 001-519-440-000 900.00         900.00           

5970 6/20/2014 Underwood Management Services Group
6/20/2014 Mangement Services 001-512-340-000 22,008.83    

Mangement Services 001-515-340-000 6,586.83      28,595.66      

5971 6/20/2014 Caldwell Pacetti Edwards Schoech &
Attending Hearings 001-519-315-000 285.00         285.00           

5972 6/20/2014 Cox Media Group
Advertisements 001-515-490-000 261.44         261.44           

5973 6/20/2014 Everglades Trading
Folders 001-512-510-000 17.18           17.18             

5974 6/20/2014 David Browning
Town Council July 2014 001-511-499-000 500.00         500.00           

5975 6/20/2014 Tom Goltzene
Town Council July 2014 001-511-499-000 500.00         500.00           

5976 6/20/2014 Ryan Liang
Town Council July 2014 001-511-499-000 500.00         500.00           

5977 6/20/2014 Jim Rockett
Town Council July 2014 001-511-499-000 500.00         500.00           

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 21 of 75



Check # Date Vendor Name/Description Account Charged Item Amount Check Total

5978 6/20/2014 AAA American Carpet
Carpet Cleaning 001-519-460-000 325.00         325.00           

5979 6/20/2014 AT&T
Phone Services 001-519-410-000 418.48         418.48           

5980 6/20/2014 Government Finance Officers Association
Membership Renewal 001-511-540-000 160.00         160.00           

5981 6/20/2014 PBSO
Law Enforcement July 2014 001-521-341-000 23,356.75    23,356.75      

5982 6/20/2014 TGI Office Automation LLC
Copier Rental 001-512-510-000 556.76         556.76           

5983 6/20/2014 TGI Office Automation
Copier Lease 001-519-440-000 168.11         168.11           

5984 6/20/2014 Ron Jarriel
Town Council July 2014 001-511-499-000 500.00         500.00           

5985 6/20/2014 Tew and Taylor, Inc.
6/20/2014 Code Enforcement 001-519-315-000 180.00         

Code Enforcement 001-519-354-000 2,700.00      2,880.00        

5986 6/20/2014 Payment Remittance Center
6/20/2014 Kutney: 4856200610133368 001-512-510-000 (9.84)           
6/20/2014 Kutney: 4856200610133368 001-519-410-000 53.00           
6/20/2014 Kutney: 4856200610133368 001-512-510-000 38.33           
6/20/2014 Kutney: 4856200610133368 001-519-440-000 149.00         
6/20/2014 Kutney: 4856200610133368 001-519-491-000 44.99           
6/20/2014 Kutney: 4856200610133368 001-512-510-000 (6.99)           
6/20/2014 Kutney: 4856200610133368 001-512-510-000 173.82         
6/20/2014 Kutney: 4856200610133368 001-519-410-000 206.87         
6/20/2014 Kutney: 4856200610133368 001-539-340-000 258.21         

Kutney: 4856200610133368 001-519-490-000 79.99           987.38           

282,959.12    

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 22 of 75



001 GENERAL FUND

Account Number Description Amount

001-101-100-000 Wells Fargo Bank Account 1,644,613.74          
001-115-000-000 Accounts Receivable 2,000.00                 
001-131-000-101 Due To/FromTransportation Fund (181,804.80)            
001-131-000-305 Due To/From Cap Imp Fund (443,963.00)            
001-131-000-405 Due To/From Sanitation Fund (241,177.21)            
001-155-000-000 Prepaid Items 22,898.75               

Total Asset 802,567.48             

001-202-000-000 Accounts Payable 4,846.12                 
001-220-000-000 Deposit on Building Permits 299.28                    
001-223-101-000 CR-Land Design South-Simon LGC (770.90)                   
001-223-102-000 CR-Lox EQ PTRS Solar SPT ODell (1,329.36)                
001-223-103-000 CR-Kilday Associates-Day (7,763.89)                
001-223-104-000 CR-Community of Hope (906.60)                   
001-223-105-000 CR-Carlson Farms 2,326.25                 
001-223-109-000 CR-Palm Bch State College (2,137.66)                
001-223-111-000 CR- Valley Crest (55.51)                     
001-223-112-000 CR-FMM 1, LLC (1,269.15)                
001-223-113-000 CR-Wellington Edge (55.50)                     
001-223-115-000 CR- Drysdale 360.92                    

Total Liability (6,456.00)                

001-251-000-000 PPA, Fund Balance 2,000.00                 
001-271-000-000 Fund Balance 732,881.61             

Excess Revenue over (under) Expenditures 74,141.87               

Total Fund Balance 809,023.48             

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 802,567.48             

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
BALANCE SHEET

AS OF June 30, 2014

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 23 of 75



101 TRANSPORTATION FUND

Account Number Description Amount

101-101-100-000 Wells Fargo - Road Fund 896,753.94             
101-131-000-001 Due To/From General Fund 181,804.80             

Total Asset 1,078,558.74          

101-202-000-000 Accounts Payable 12,977.58

Total Liability 12,977.58

101-270-005-000 Five Cent Fund Balance 297,948.46             
101-270-006-000 Six Cent Fund Balance 464,191.00             
101-271-000-000 Fund Balance 134,745.90             

Excess Revenue over (under) Expenditures 168,695.80             

Total Fund Balance 1,065,581.16          

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 1,078,558.74          

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 24 of 75



305 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS FUND

Account Number Description Amount

305-101-100-000 Wells Fargo - Cap Improvements 784,724.87             
305-131-000-001 Due To/From General Fund 443,963.00             

Total Asset 1,228,687.87          

305-202-000-000 Accounts Payable 28,893.00               

Total Liability 28,893.00               

305-271-000-000 Fund Balance 1,400,000.00          

Excess Revenue over (under) Expenditures (200,205.13)            

Total Fund Balance 1,199,794.87          

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 1,228,687.87          

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 25 of 75



405 SANITATION FUND

Account Number Description  Amount

405-101-100-000 Wells Fargo - Sanitation Fund 13,454.12               
405-131-000-001 Due To/From General Fund 100,589.79             

Total Asset 114,043.91             

405-202-000-000 Accounts Payable 33,577.50               

Total Liability 33,577.50               

405-271-000-000 Fund Balance 37,058.06               

Excess Revenue over (under) Expenditures 44,195.85               

Total Fund Balance 81,253.91               

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 114,831.41             

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 26 of 75



001 GENERAL FUND

Account Number Description Debit Credit

AS 001-101-100-000 Wells Fargo Bank Account 1,644,613.74            -                        
AS 001-115-000-000 Accounts Receivable 2,000.00                   -                        
AS 001-131-000-101 Due To/FromTransportation Fund -                            181,804.80            
AS 001-131-000-305 Due To/From Cap Imp Fund -                            443,963.00            
AS 001-131-000-405 Due To/From Sanitation Fund -                            241,177.21            
AS 001-155-000-000 Prepaid Items 22,898.75                 -                        
LI 001-202-000-000 Accounts Payable -                            4,846.12                
LI 001-220-000-000 Deposit on Building Permits -                            299.28                   
LI 001-223-101-000 CR-Land Design South-Simon LGC 770.90                      -                        
LI 001-223-102-000 CR-Lox EQ PTRS Solar SPT ODell 1,329.36                   -                        
LI 001-223-103-000 CR-Kilday Associates-Day 7,763.89                   -                        
LI 001-223-104-000 CR-Community of Hope 906.60                      -                        
LI 001-223-105-000 CR-Carlson Farms -                            2,326.25                
LI 001-223-109-000 CR-Palm Bch State College 2,137.66                   -                        
LI 001-223-111-000 CR- Valley Crest 55.51                        -                        
LI 001-223-112-000 CR-FMM 1, LLC 1,269.15                   -                        
LI 001-223-113-000 CR-Wellington Edge 55.50                        -                        
LI 001-223-115-000 CR- Drysdale -                            360.92                   
FB 001-251-000-000 PPA, Fund Balance -                            2,000.00                
FB 001-271-000-000 Fund Balance -                            732,881.61            
RE 001-311-100-000 Ad Valorem Taxes -                            204,683.59            
RE 001-314-100-000 Electric Utility Tax -                            157,881.98            
RE 001-315-100-000 Communications Services Tax -                            68,159.50              
RE 001-316-200-000 County Occupational Licenses -                            4,476.62                
RE 001-323-100-000 FPL Franchise Fee -                            105,863.43            
RE 001-323-125-000 Haulers License Fee -                            3,805.00                
RE 001-323-300-000 PBC Water Utility Franchise Fe -                            3,716.39                
RE 001-329-100-000 Planning & Zoning Permit Fees -                            4,461.50                
RE 001-335-120-000 State Revenue Sharing -                            57,948.39              
RE 001-335-180-000 Half Cent Sales Tax -                            159,494.68            
RE 001-341-000-000 General Government Charges -                            2,493.30                
RE 001-343-349-000 Cost Recovery Fees -                            21,471.41              
RE 001-354-100-000 Code Enforcement Fines -                            9,647.50                
RE 001-361-100-000 Interest -                            124.75                   
RE 001-369-000-000 Other Misc Income -                            2,991.54                

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
TRIAL BALANCE

AS OF June 30, 2014

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 27 of 75



001 GENERAL FUND

Account Number Description Debit Credit

EX 001-511-492-000 Other Operating Expenses 196.10                      -                        
EX 001-511-499-000 Other Current Chgs-Town Counci 25,000.00                 -                        
EX 001-511-540-000 Books, Publications & Subscrip 4,549.63                   -                        
EX 001-511-820-000 Special Events/Contributions 5,500.00                   -                        
EX 001-512-340-000 Other Services 198,079.47               -                        
EX 001-512-400-000 Travel and Per Diem 657.44                      -                        
EX 001-512-420-000 Postage & Freight 371.04                      -                        
EX 001-512-490-000 Legal Advertising 141.60                      -                        
EX 001-512-492-000 Other Operating Expenses 287.04                      -                        
EX 001-512-493-000 Election Expense 247.50                      -                        
EX 001-512-510-000 Office Supplies 8,867.00                   -                        
EX 001-512-540-000 Books, Publications & Subscrip 449.68                      -                        
EX 001-513-320-000 Accounting and Auditing 16,700.00                 -                        
EX 001-513-490-000 Legal Advertising 910.00                      -                        
EX 001-514-310-000 Professional Services 66,928.70                 -                        
EX 001-515-310-000 Professional Services 31,664.00                 -                        
EX 001-515-340-000 Other Services 59,280.47                 -                        
EX 001-515-343-000 Planning & Zoning Contract 1,595.00                   -                        
EX 001-515-349-000 Cost Recovery Expenditures 22,396.41                 -                        
EX 001-515-490-000 Legal Advertising 10,157.44                 -                        
EX 001-519-315-000 Special Magistrate 8,068.63                   -                        
EX 001-519-354-000 Code Compliance 15,140.25                 -                        
EX 001-519-410-000 Communications Services 5,109.94                   -                        
EX 001-519-440-000 Rentals and Leases 13,569.45                 -                        
EX 001-519-450-000 Insurance 15,111.00                 -                        
EX 001-519-460-000 Repair & Maint - Buildings 2,325.00                   -                        
EX 001-519-490-000 Computer Repair 959.06                      -                        
EX 001-519-491-000 Computer Services 4,256.23                   -                        
EX 001-519-494-000 Inspector General Office Fee 2,218.00                   -                        
EX 001-519-820-000 Loxahatchee Groves CERT 208.00                      -                        
EX 001-521-341-000 Professional Services-PBSO 210,210.75               -                        
EX 001-539-340-000 Other Services 1,922.88                   -                        

2,416,878.77            2,273,727.77         

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 28 of 75



101 TRANSPORTATION FUND

Account Number Description Debit Credit

AS 101-101-100-000 Wells Fargo - Road Fund 896,753.94               -                        
AS 101-131-000-001 Due To/From General Fund 181,804.80               -                        
LI 101-202-000-000 Accounts Payable -                            12,977.58              
FB 101-270-005-000 Five Cent Fund Balance -                            297,948.46            
FB 101-270-006-000 Six Cent Fund Balance -                            464,191.00            
FB 101-271-000-000 Fund Balance -                            134,745.90            
RE 101-312-410-000 1st Local Option Fuel Tax (6 c -                            165,811.82            
RE 101-312-420-000 2nd Local Option Fuel Tax (5 c -                            80,062.46              
EX 101-541-467-000 Traffic Control Signs - 6c 3,656.00                   -                        
EX 101-541-468-000 Non-District Roads (6 ct) Main 55,537.48                 -                        
EX 101-541-469-000 District Roads (6 ct) Maint 2,915.00                   -                        
EX 101-541-920-000 Transfer to Capital Projects 15,070.00                 -                        

1,155,737.22            1,155,737.22         

305 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS FUND

Account Number Description Debit Credit

AS 305-101-100-000 Wells Fargo - Cap Improvements 784,724.87               -                        
AS 305-131-000-001 Due To/From General Fund 443,963.00               -                        
LI 305-202-000-000 Accounts Payable -                            28,893.00              
FB 305-271-000-000 Fund Balance -                            1,400,000.00         
RE 305-363-991-000 Contributions from Transp Fund -                            15,070.00              
EX 305-541-610-000 Surveying Town Road 9,653.00                   -                        
EX 305-541-630-000 Okeechobee & D Road Traffic Li 6,000.00                   -                        
EX 305-541-640-000 Town Roads OGEM Projects 141,836.13               -                        
EX 305-541-654-000 Purchase roads from LGWCD 57,786.00                 -                        

1,443,963.00            1,443,963.00         

405 SANITATION FUND

Account Number Description Debit Credit

AS 405-101-100-000 Wells Fargo - Sanitation Fund 13,454.12                 -                        
AS 405-131-000-001 Due To/From General Fund 100,589.79               -                        
LI 405-202-000-000 Accounts Payable -                            33,577.50              
FB 405-271-000-000 Fund Balance -                            37,058.06              
RE 405-325-205-000 Solid Waste Assessments -                            404,499.20            
RE 405-325-206-000 Discount Fees 13,727.45                 -                        
RE 405-343-120-000 SWA Recycling Income -                            2,162.15                
EX 405-534-345-000 Contractual - Waste Oversight 19,622.12                 -                        
EX 405-534-346-000 PBC Administration Fee 1% 3,742.79                   -                        
EX 405-534-434-000 Solid Waste Contractor 324,673.14               -                        
EX 405-534-490-000 Legal Advertising 700.00                      -                        

476,509.41               477,296.91            

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 29 of 75



FAAC Agenda Packet Page 30 of 75



FAAC Agenda Packet Page 31 of 75



 
DRAFT 

 
Purchasing Ordinance 

(a) Intent:  All public purchases shall be made in such a manner as to invite and foster fair 
competition, to ensure procurement integrity and maximize the acquisition value of 
public funds while allowing for an efficient purchasing operation.  

(b) Definitions:  As used in this Section, the following words, terms or phrases shall be 
defined as follows: 

(1) Addenda means any written or demonstrative information issued prior to the 
opening of bids or proposals which clarify correct or change the bid or proposal 
documents. 

(2) Amendment is a method of changing the terms and conditions or requirements of a 
contract beyond what is specifically allowed by contract.  All amendments must 
be approved in the same manner as the original contract unless the amendment 
changes the price to an amount requiring a higher level of approval authority. 

(3) Award means the acceptance of a quote, bid or proposal by the proper approval 
authority.  The Town Council must award all contracts which exceed TWENTY 
FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($25,000). 

(4) Approval authority is the designated authority under this Purchasing Code to 
approve Town purchases.  

(5) Bidder is any person or entity who submits a bid in response to an Invitation to 
Bid. 

(6) Blanket purchase order is a purchase order issued to a vendor against which 
multiple purchases may be made for a specified period of time.  Blanket Purchase 
Orders are usually used for acquisition of small dollar value goods and/or services 
purchased on a repetitive basis. 

(7) Capital assets include all tangible and intangible assets acquired for use in 
operations that will benefit more than one fiscal period (e.g., land, improvements 
to land, easements, buildings, building improvements, vehicles, machinery, 
equipment, infrastructure and various intangible assets). 

(8) Competitive sealed bids mean the response by bidders to an Invitation to Bid 
issued by the Town . 

 

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 32 of 75



(9) Contract means a binding agreement, enforceable by law, between two (2) or 
more parties for the purchase or sale of goods and/or services.  A purchase order 
is a contract.  Town contracts and or purchase orders shall be utilized for all 
purchases unless the purchase is under $1,000. 

(10) Contractor means any person or entity having a contract with the Town of 
Loxahatchee Groves. 

(11) Emergency purchase means a procurement made in response to a need when the 
delay incident to complying with all governing rules, regulations, or procedures 
would be detrimental to the interests, health, safety, or welfare of the Town .  

(12) Goods include but are not limited to commodities, equipment, machinery, 
furniture, computers, vehicles, tools, material and other tangible property, which 
may be purchased, leased or otherwise contracted for by the Town . 

(13) Invitation to bid means a solicitation used in the formal competitive bid process to 
solicit sealed bids for the purchase of specified goods and/or services as required 
by this Ordinance or determined to be in the best interest of the Town. 

(14) Local bidder  means a person or entity authorized to transact business in this 
state and having a place of business located within the Loxahatchee Groves 
service area at which it was actually transacting business for a minimum of one 
(1) year prior to the date when any competitive solicitation for a public contract is 
first advertised or announced.   

(15) Local bidder preference means the preference as more fully described herein 
given by the Town Council to bidders which have their place of business located 
within the Loxahatchee Groves service area. 

(16) Minor irregularity means a variation from the bid invitation terms and conditions 
which do not affect the price of the bid, give the bidder an unfair advantage over 
other bidders, or adversely impact the interests of the Town.  A bidder may not 
modify its bid after opening; however, calculation or typographical errors may be 
corrected by the Town. 

(17) Purchase order is the primary means of purchasing goods and/or services for the 
Town.  A purchase order is intended to provide some assurance that proper 
procedures are followed and all approvals have been obtained prior to placing the 
order for the goods and/or services.  All Purchases Orders must be approved by 
Town Manager or his designee.   Certain items do not require a purchase order 
and are listed under “Exceptions to the use of Purchase Orders” Section (d)(5)(e). 

 

 

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 33 of 75



(18) Request for proposal means a written solicitation for sealed proposals when the 
Town has not specifically defined the statement of work for which goods and/or 
services are required or when the Town has not established precise specifications 
defining the actual goods and/or services required.  A request for proposal shall 
include, but is not limited to, the information required in an invitation to bid 
except that the identification and definition of the goods and/or services sought 
will be in more general terms. 

(19) Request for qualifications means a written solicitation for sealed proposals when 
the Town desires to purchase services based on the qualifications of the 
respondents but has not specifically defined the statement of work for which a 
service is required, but has specified the overall type of service required.  For 
example, engineering services, legal services, and auditing services are all types 
of services that may be solicited for with a request for qualifications. 

(20) Respondent is a person or entity who submits a bid, quote, proposal or 
qualification in response to a Town request. 

(21) Responsible bidder, quoter, proposer or respondent means a person or entity who 
has submitted a bid, proposal, quotation, or response demonstrating the capability 
in all respects to fully perform the contract requirements and who has the integrity 
and reliability to provide reasonable assurance of good faith and performance.  
Such determination shall be in the sole discretion of the approval authority subject 
to the requirements of the solicitation. 

(22) Responsive bidder, quoter, proposer, or respondent means the person or entity 
who has submitted a bid, proposal, quotation, or response that conforms in all 
material respects to the solicitation.  Such determination shall be in the sole 
discretion of the approval authority subject to the requirements of the solicitation. 

(23) Rotating contractor list means a list established by Purchasing every two (2) years 
consisting of at least three (3) available contractors that may be utilized by a 
Town on a rotating basis to make purchases of goods and/or services estimated to 
be $2500 or less. 

(24) Services mean the rendering by a contractor of its time, labor, effort, professional 
expertise, consulting, insurance, maintenance, cleaning and other assistance used 
by the Town. 

(25) Sole source purchase is a purchase where there is only one (1) good and/or 
service that meets an essential requirement of the Town, as determined by a 
reasonable and thorough analysis of the marketplace, and that it is determined to 
be available from only one (1) source.  

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 34 of 75



(26) Vendor means an actual or potential supplier of a good or service.  A vendor can 
be a quoter, bidder, respondent, or proposer; however, upon execution of a 
contract with the Town, the vendor is referenced herein as a “contractor”. 

(c) Capital Asset Purchases:  Capital Asset purchases shall comply with all purchasing 
requirements stated in this Purchasing Code and as may be required by Resolution setting 
forth other policies and procedures for purchasing Capital Assets.  

(1) All Capital Asset purchases with an original cost of FIVE THOUSAND 
DOLLARS ($5,000) or more, including ancillary costs and with a useful life of 
one year or more will be capitalized for financial accounting purposes.  

(2) Monitored Expensed Assets Purchases: Asset purchases with an original cost of 
ONE THOUSAND  DOLLARS ($1000) or more and less than FIVE 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($5,000), including ancillary costs and with a useful life 
of one year or more will be identified, and accounted for over the asset’s life. 

(3) Unmonitored Expensed Asset Purchases:  Asset purchases with an original cost of 
less than ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1000), including ancillary costs and 
with a useful life of one year or more that will not be monitored (e.g., chairs, 
cabinets, and bookcases), but will be included for insurance purposes. 

(d) Authority to Purchase or Contract:  Unless specifically delegated within this Section, the 
authority to enter a contract and amend a contract, which includes extensions, 
modifications of material terms and terminations, on behalf of the Town of Loxahatchee 
Groves rests solely with the Town Council as the approval authority.  Without Town 
Council approval to enter or amend a contract, the contract or amendment is void and 
unenforceable. 

(1) The Town Council shall approve in advance any purchase or contract having a 
value of TWENTY FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($25,000) or more and any 
amendment to such contract or any amendment that causes the amended purchase 
and/or contract to exceed a total of TWENTY FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS 
($25,000) regardless of whether the original purchase or contract required Town 
Council approval.  Such purchase or contract shall be awarded in accordance with 
Section (d) (6).  Purchase and/or contract shall be reviewed, evaluated and 
approved by the Town Manager.  This section shall not be applicable if the 
purchase qualifies as an emergency purchase, as described in Section (d) (5) (C). 

(2) Delegation of approval authority:  the Town Council delegates its approval 
authority to enter into contracts and/or purchases to the following staff as long as 
sufficient budget appropriations are currently available for such contracts and or 
purchases: 

 

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 35 of 75



(A) Town Manager or his designee may make purchases not to exceed ONE 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1000) without obtaining verbal or written 
proposals.  However, in making this level of purchase Town Manager or 
designee should always make a conscientious effort to acquire goods 
and/or services at the lowest total cost to the Town.  

(B) Purchases of greater than an estimated cost of ONE THOUSAND 
DOLLARS ($1000) but less than or equal to FIVE THOUSAND 
DOLLARS ($5000) shall require obtaining and documenting at least three 
(3) quotations by telephone.  All such purchases shall be approved in 
advance by the Town Manager or his designee.  

(C) Purchases of greater than an estimated cost of FIVE THOUSAND 
DOLLARS ($5000) but less than TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS shall 
require at least three (3) written quotes.  All such purchases shall be 
approved in advance by the Town Manager. 

(3) Purchase amounts shall not be divided or split to circumvent the approval 
authority.   

(4) All contracts for real property (regardless of price), contracts involving exclusive 
rights or any other non-standard contracts shall require Town Council approval. 

(5) Exceptions:  variances from the standard purchasing procedures shall be handled 
as follows: 

(A) Less than three (3) written quotes:  when the Town Manager or his 
designee can only obtain two (2) written quotes or less for a purchase over 
FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($5000), but not exceeding TEN 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000), written documentation must be 
submitted as to all of the steps taken to try to obtain three (3) written 
quotes, such documentation must include: 

• all persons or entities contacted 
• when contact was made with each 
• who made contact with each 
• each person’s or entity’s response 

 
After it is determined that all requirements have been met then the 
documentation is submitted to Town Manager for approval 

(B) Blanket Purchase Order:  the approval authority for a Blanket Purchase 
Order is the same as the approval authority for a purchase order or 
contract depending on the anticipated annual total dollar amount of the 
Blanket Purchase Order.  The use of a Blanket Purchase Order to 
circumvent the competitive pricing or bid procedure is prohibited.    

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 36 of 75



Blanket Purchase Orders may also be used for the purchase of goods and 
services for contracts that have been competitively bid and awarded by 
either the Town Manager or Town Council. 

(C) Emergency purchases:  in extreme emergencies, the Town Manager may 
bypass normal purchasing procedures and approve the purchase of those 
goods and/ or services necessary to remove or correct the emergency 
condition.  Emergency purchases may be made when one or more of the 
following criteria apply: 

• critical Town  operations may be severely affected in an adverse 
manner 

• creates a threat to public health, welfare or safety 
• a delay in the procurement of goods and/or services is not in the 

public interest 

Emergency purchases may not be used in place of a routine or recurring 
purchasing requirement, because of a lack of advance planning or to avoid 
seeking competitive quotes, bids, proposals or qualifications. 

(1)  If an emergency purchase is made for FIVE THOUSAND 
DOLLARS ($5000) or more, the Town Manager or his designee 
may make such purchase without obtaining the required written 
quotes.  Town Manager shall certify in writing within forty-eight 
(48) hours of the purchase all of the circumstances that justify the 
emergency purchase by completing an Emergency Purchase Form 
which shall include the reason for the emergency purchase, a 
description of the good and/or service being purchased, total cost 
of the purchase and if quotes were obtained, the vendors names 
and amounts of each quote, and shall also certify on the 
Emergency Purchase Form the purchase was a bona fide 
emergency purchase. 

(2) If an emergency purchase is required that exceeds FIVE 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($5,000) but less than TEN 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000), the user Department Director 
with prior written authorization from the Director of Finance and 
Town  Manager, may make such purchase without obtaining the 
required written quotes.  The user Department Director shall 
certify in writing the circumstances that justify the emergency 
purchase before the purchase is authorized by completing an 
Emergency Purchase Form which shall include the reason for the 
emergency purchase, a description of the good and/or service being 
purchased, total cost of the purchase and if quotes were obtained, 
the vendors names and amounts of each quote.  Both the Director 

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 37 of 75



of Finance and Town Manager shall also certify on the Emergency 
Purchase Form the purchase was a bona fide emergency purchase. 

(3) If an emergency purchase is required that has a value of TEN 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000) or more, the Town Manager 
or his designee with the prior written authorization Town Council, 
may make such purchase without formal publication and issuance 
of an invitation to bid, request for proposal or request for 
qualifications.  The Town Manager or designee shall obtain as 
many competitive verbal or written quotes from potential 
contractors as time permits.  The Emergency Purchase Form shall 
include the reason for the emergency purchase, a description of the 
good and/or service being purchased, total cost of the purchase and 
listing all verbal or written quotes by vendor name and amount of 
each quote.  The Emergency Purchase Form shall be submitted 
prior to the purchase and shall require additional certification of 
the Town Manager.  Such emergency purchase and written 
certification shall be submitted to the Town Council for approval 
or ratification on a timely basis.  

Note: If an executive order is issued by the Governor of the State of 
Florida for an incident relating to the Town of Loxahatchee 
Groves, all emergency purchase documentation regardless of the 
amount of the purchase shall document that the purchase is related 
to an executive order that has been issued by the Governor of the 
State of Florida.  The Town Manager shall declare when and if the 
Departments shall begin tracking emergency purchases as 
“incident related purchases”. 

Note: If the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) declares an 
incident period affecting the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, all 
emergency purchase documentation regardless of the amount of 
the purchase shall document that the purchase is related to an 
incident as declared by FEMA.  If the incident is named the 
documentation shall specify the named incident the purchase is 
related to.  The Town Manager shall declare when and if the 
Departments shall begin tracking emergency purchases as 
“incident related purchases”. 

(D) Sole source purchase requires: 

(1)   Written documentation, the Town Manager or his designee 
justifying why the requested good and/or service is the only one 
(1) that will meet the Town’s specific need or that the good and/or 
service is required in order to prevent voiding the warranty. 

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 38 of 75



(2)   Written documentation from the potential vendor/supplier stating 
that they are the only source of supply for the requested good 
and/or service.  If the potential vendor/supplier is not the 
manufacturer, additional written documentation must be provided 
in which the manufacturer attests that the potential vendor/supplier 
is their sole supplier for the requested good and/or service. 

A sole source purchase cannot be justified on the basis of quality or price, 
as quality can be a subjective evaluation based on individual opinion, and 
price considerations must be evaluated by competitive bidding or 
competitive quotes.  If there is more than one (1) good and/or service that 
will perform essentially the same function under essentially the same 
conditions as the requested good and/or service, a sole source is deemed 
not to exist. 

(E) Piggyback purchases occur when the Town desires to utilize an existing 
contract between a person or entity and another governmental agency or a 
recognized governmental-related association without the necessity of 
obtaining written quotes or publishing an invitation to bid, request for 
proposal or request for qualifications.  The Town may “Piggyback” a 
contract with substantially the same terms and conditions as the existing 
contract.  This may be done providing that the originating governmental 
agency or governmental-related association utilized a competitive process 
similar to the Town ’s; that substantially the same terms and conditions are 
extended to the Town ; the “Piggyback” contract must be received by the 
Town and reviewed by the Town Manager and Town Attorney; and the 
contract terms and conditions are accepted by the Town .  Some terms and 
conditions of the existing contract may be modified by the Town so long 
as they do not substantially change the purchase.  The purchase order or 
contract must include the originating entity, the contract number, 
expiration date of the contract, and the name and phone number of the 
contract’s administrator. 

(1) For piggyback contracts less than TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS 
($10,000), the Town Manager or his designee certifies in writing 
that the governmental agency or governmental-related 
association’s contract substantially meets the requirements of the 
Town , offers a competitive price and was awarded through the 
governmental agency or governmental-related association’s own 
competitive purchasing procedures; and, 

(2) For piggyback contracts having a value of TEN THOUSAND 
DOLLARS ($10,000) or more, in addition to the requirements in 
Section (d)(5)(E)(1), the Town Manager certifies in writing to the 
best of his or her knowledge that: 

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 39 of 75



• utilizing the other governmental agency or governmental-
related association’s contract is in the best interest of the 
Town ; and 

• all other requirements of this Purchasing Ordinance have 
been adhered to. 

Piggyback contracts estimated to have an annual value of TEN 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000) or more shall be subject to 
Town Council approval. 

(F) Exempt purchases:  certain recurring or one time purchases or 
expenditures may be exempt from the competitive bidding process and 
normal purchase procedures because of unique circumstances.  These 
purchases or expenditures include: 

 
• water, sewer, electrical, telephone, and other utility services where 

competition is not available 
• dues and memberships in professional organizations, seminars, 

registrations, and fees associated with such activities 
• subscriptions to periodicals 
• advertisements for legal, promotional or informative matters 
• postage 
• insurance premiums 
• food service and retail leases and concessions 
• vending machines 
• goods purchased with petty cash in accordance with established 

Town  procedures 
• legal services, expert witnesses, court reporter services, and other 

expenses pertaining to claims or litigation 
• lobbyist and any other unique or specialized professional 

consulting services except those subject to the Consultants 
Competitive Negotiations Act 

• abstracts of titles or appraisals for real property 
• artists, artistic services, music ensembles and related services for 

entertainment 
• licensed computer software where competition is not reasonably 

available 
• licensed computer software maintenance renewals 
• services or commodities provided by governmental agencies or 

governmental-related associations 
• full or part-time contractual services 
• temporary personnel 
• debt service costs and agent fees 
• emergency drug screens and physicals 
• payroll generated payments (e.g. child support, etc.) 

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 40 of 75



• certain refunds and reimbursements (e.g. deposits, etc.) 
• repairs and services on proprietary equipment or warranty services 

on such equipment 
• other similar payments as approved by Town Manager 

 
The foregoing purchase or expenditures shall, where possible, be 
competitively procured by the Town.  
 
The foregoing purchases or expenditures require the approval of the Town 
Manager or his designee.  Funds must be budgeted and available before 
the purchase or expenditure can be made.   

(G) Local Bidder Preference:  In any award of Bid, the Town Council may 
give preference to a local bidder’s bid, if and only if, the local bidder is 
determined to be a responsive and responsible bidder and the local 
bidder’s bid is determined to be within ten (10) percent or TEN 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000), whichever is less, of the lowest, 
responsive and responsible bid. 

(H) Rotating Contractor List may be established in order to satisfy certain 
recurring goods and/or services.  All rotating contractor lists shall be 
established by the Town Manager or his designee.  Town Manager or his 
designee shall choose at least three (3) of the responsible bidders or 
respondents, if available, who provided the lowest and most responsive 
quote, bid, proposal or qualifications.  The term of any rotating contractor 
list shall not exceed two (2) years.  The Town Manger or his designee 
shall ensure that the contractors on the list receive equal opportunity to 
provide the required goods and/or services to the Town.   Routine failure 
of any of the contractors to provide the required goods and/or services will 
be documented and cause that contractor to be removed from the rotating 
contractor list by the Town Manager. 

(6) Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals or Request for Qualifications: Purchases 
having a value of TWENTY FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($25,000) or more 
shall be made by Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals or Request for 
Qualifications. 

(1)   Invitations to Bid require all of the following: 

(A) Specifications shall be prepared by the Town Manager or his 
designee. Specifications shall be written in a manner to ensure for 
an open and competitive bid process. 

(B) Invitation to Bid is coordinated by the Town Manager or his 
designee which shall include instructions to bidders, identification 
and definition of the goods and/or services sought; applicable 

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 41 of 75



plans, drawings, specifications, or statement of work; identification 
of the location, date and hour of the due date for the bids; 
identifying the location, date and hour of the public bid opening, 
and identification of the evaluation criteria for determining the 
successful bidder.  Terms and conditions may include, but not be 
limited to, the requirement of insurance or surety. 

(C)   Public notice of the Invitation to Bid shall be published as required 
by Florida Statute 255.0525(2) in a newspaper of general 
circulation in the Town  or Palm Beach County and may be posted 
on the Town ’s website and/or Town  bulletin board.  

(D) Bid Submission.  Bids should state the name and address of the 
bidder on the outside of the envelope, package or container, and 
must be received no later than the time and date and at the location 
specified for bid opening in the Invitation to Bid.  No bids shall be 
accepted after such time and date or at any location other than 
specified, and any bids received later or at any location other than 
specified shall be returned unopened to the bidder. 

(E) Bid opening.  Bids shall be opened publicly at the date, time and 
location specified in the Invitation to Bid.  The name of each 
bidder and bid amount shall be stated and such other relevant 
information shall be recorded. 

(F) Bid cancellation.  The Town reserves the right to cancel any bid. 

(G) Corrections, additions to and withdrawal of bids. 

(1) The following shall govern the correction of information 
submitted in a bid when that information is a determinant 
of the responsiveness of the bid: 

(a) Errors in the extension, addition or multiplication of 
unit prices stated in bid or in multiplication, 
division, addition, or subtraction in a bid shall be 
corrected by the Town Manager or his designee 
prior to award recommendation.  However, actual 
unit prices included in the bid shall not be changed 
under this or any other circumstance. 

(b) No bidder shall be permitted to correct a bid 
mistake after bid opening. 

(c) Nothing herein is intended to prohibit the 
acceptance of a voluntary reduction in price from 

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 42 of 75



the lowest responsive, responsible bidder after bid 
opening, provided such reduction is not conditioned 
on, or does not result in, the modification or 
deletion of any specification or conditions contained 
in the Invitation to Bid or after the determination of 
which bidder is to be awarded the bid or portion 
thereof. 

(2) A bidder who has made a clearly evident mistake of fact 
may be permitted to withdraw his/her bid only when it is 
determined by the Town Manager that there is reasonable 
proof that such a mistake was made.  However, if a bidder 
unilaterally withdraws his/her bid without permission after 
bid opening, the Town Manager may suspend the bidder for 
up to two (2) years from the date of the unilateral 
withdrawal.  Further, if the apparent lowest responsive, 
responsible bidder has made a mistake of any kind in a 
lump sum construction-related bid, the bid bond shall not 
be returned. 

(H) Bid evaluation. 

(1) The Town  reserves the right to accept or reject any and all 
bids and to make award to the lowest responsive and 
responsible bidder whose bid meets the requirements and 
criteria set forth in the Invitation to Bid and whose award 
will, in the opinion of the Town  be in the best interest of 
and most advantageous to the Town . 

(2) A bid shall be considered responsive only if it conforms to 
the requirements of the Invitation to Bid. 

(3) Information in a bid that concerns the responsibility of the 
bidder shall not necessarily be considered conclusive at the 
time of bid opening. 

(a) Factors to be considered in determining whether the 
standard of responsibility has been met may 
include, but not be limited to, whether a bidder has: 

• the appropriate financial, material, 
equipment, facility, and personnel resources 
and expertise, or the ability to obtain them, 
necessary to indicate its capability to meet 
all contractual requirements; 

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 43 of 75



• a satisfactory record of performance and 
experience; 

• a satisfactory record of integrity; 
• the capacity to legally contract with the 

Town ; and 
• supplied all necessary information in 

connection with the inquiry concerning 
responsibility, including but not limited to 
any licenses, permits, or organization papers 
required. 

(b) The bidder shall supply information requested by 
the Town concerning the responsibility of such 
bidder.  If such bidder fails to supply the requested 
information, the Town shall base the determination 
of responsibility upon available information and 
may find the bidder non-responsible. 

(c) The Town Manager may determine the information 
submitted concerning the responsibility of the 
bidder is so inadequate as to warrant a 
recommendation of rejection of the bid based upon 
a lack of demonstrated responsibility on the part of 
the bidder. 

(d) Pursuant to the particular solicitation, the Town 
Manager, after bid opening, may request additional 
information of the bidder concerning his 
responsibility to perform.  The Town Manager shall 
consider this and all other information gained prior 
to award recommendation to the Town Council. 

(I)  The Town  Manager shall recommend to the Town Council which 
bidder or bidders in his or her opinion is the lowest, most 
responsive and responsible bidder or bidders, or may recommend 
that the Town Council reject all bids, cancel the Invitation to Bid 
and/or re-issue the Invitation to Bid. 

(J)   The Town Council has the ultimate authority to make an award to 
the bidder or bidders whom the Town Council determines in its 
sole discretion is the lowest, most responsive and responsible 
bidder or bidders, or it may reject all bids, cancel the Invitation to 
Bid and/or re-issue the Invitation to Bid or take such further action 
as is deemed appropriate in the sole discretion of the Town 
Council. The reasons for rejecting bids and cancelling solicitations 
shall be stated by the Town Council. 

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 44 of 75



(K)   The Town Council has the authority to waive all minor 
irregularities on any and all bids except timeliness and other 
matters that would provide an unfair competitive advantage.  

(2)   Requests for Proposals require all of the following: 

(A)   A general statement of work shall be prepared by the Town.  A 
general statement shall be written in a manner to ensure for an 
open and competitive bid process. 

(B)   Request for Proposal is coordinated by the Town Manager or his 
designee identifying the date, time and place that the sealed 
proposals must be received by the Town; the date and time of 
opening the sealed proposals; and setting forth the general 
statement of work or disclose where the general statement of work 
may be obtained or examined.  The Request for Proposal should 
also contain a list of selection factors to be used by the Town in 
determining the successful proposer. 

(C)  Public notice of the Request for Proposal shall be published as 
required by Florida Statute 255.0525(2) in a newspaper of general 
circulation in the Town  or Palm Beach County and may be posted 
on the Town ’s website and/or Town  bulletin. 

(D)   The Town Manager or selection committee, if established, shall 
recommend to the Town Council which proposal or proposals offer 
the most advantageous opportunity to the Town or whether the 
Town Council should reject all proposals, cancel the Request for 
Proposal and/or re-issue the Request for Proposal. 

(E)   The Town Council has the ultimate authority to make an award to 
the respondent whom the Town Council determines in its sole 
discretion offers the most advantageous opportunity to the Town, 
or to reject all proposals, cancel the Request for Proposals and/or 
re-issue the Request for Proposal, and take such further action as is 
deemed appropriate in the sole discretion of the Town Council.  
The reasons for rejecting bids and cancelling solicitations shall be 
stated by the Town Council. 

(F)   The Town Council has the authority to waive all minor 
irregularities on any and all proposals except timeliness and other 
matters that would provide an unfair competitive advantage.  

(3) Requests for Qualifications require all of the following: 

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 45 of 75



(A)   A general statement of work and required qualifications shall be 
prepared by the Town.  The general statement shall be written in a 
manner to ensure an open and competitive bid process. 

(B)   Request for Qualifications is coordinated by the Town Manager of 
his designee identifying the date, time and place that the sealed 
qualifications must be received by the Town; the date and time of 
opening the sealed qualifications; and setting forth the general 
statement of work or disclose where the general statement of work 
may be obtained or examined.  The Request for Qualifications 
should also contain a list of selection factors to be used by the 
Town in determining the successful proposer. 

(C)   If the Request for Qualifications is for services identified in 
Florida’s Consultant’s Competitive Negotiation Act (“CCNA” 
hereafter), §287.055, Florida Statutes, the Request for 
Qualifications shall refer to the CCNA and shall utilize the 
procedures established in the CCNA. 

(D)   Public notice of the Request for Qualifications shall be published 
as required by Florida State Statute 255.0525(2) in a newspaper of 
general circulation in the Town  or Palm Beach County and may be 
posted on the Town ’s website and/or Town  bulletin. 

(E)   The Town Manager or selection committee, if established, shall 
recommend to the Town Council which qualified respondent or 
respondents present the most advantageous opportunity to the 
Town, or shall recommend to the Town Council that it reject all 
respondents, cancel the Request for Qualifications and/or re-issue 
the Request for Qualifications. 

(F) The Town Council has the ultimate authority to make an award to 
the most qualified respondent or respondents whom the Town 
Council determines in its sole discretion offer the most 
advantageous opportunity to the Town or to reject all respondents, 
cancel the Request for Qualifications and/or re-issue the Request 
for Qualifications, and take such further action as is deemed 
appropriate in the sole discretion of the Town Council. 

(G)   The Town Council has the authority to waive all minor 
irregularities on any and all responses except timeliness and other 
matters which would provide an unfair competitive advantage.  

 

 

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 46 of 75



(4) Bidder Protests.   

(A) Right to protest:  Any actual respondent who has a grievance in 
connection with an Invitation to Bid, request for proposals, request 
for qualifications or other purchasing solicitation may protest such 
purchase.  Recommended awards less than TEN THOUSAND 
DOLLARS ($10,000) cannot be protested. 

 
(B) Procedure:  A protest must be in writing and shall state the reason 

for the protest.  The written protest shall be submitted to the Town 
Manager within seven (7) calendar days of the first date that the 
aggrieved party knew or should have known of the facts giving rise 
to the protest.  The Town Manager after consultation with the 
Town Attorney shall review such protest and shall issue a written 
decision as soon as practicable after such review is completed.  
The decision of the Town Manger may be appealed in writing to 
the Town Council within seven (7) calendar days after the date of 
the Town Manager’s written decision.  The decision of the Town 
Council shall be final.  An appeal of the decision of the Town 
Council shall be to the appropriate court in the Fifteenth Judicial 
Circuit, Palm Beach County, Florida.   

 
(C) Stay of procurement during protest:  A purchase which is the 

subject of a timely protest shall be stayed until a written decision 
by the Town Manager is made and the time for appeal to the Town 
Council has expired.  If an appeal is made to the Town Council, 
the purchase shall be stayed until a final decision by the Town 
Council has been made.  This provision shall not apply if the Town 
Council makes a determination that the execution of a contract 
without delay is necessary to protect substantial interests of the 
Town.  Scheduled respondent presentations or conferences shall 
not be stayed by such protest.   

 
(D) Remedies for purchases in violation of law:  If the Town Manager, 

after consultation with the Town attorney, determines that a 
purchase whether protested or not is in violation of federal, state, 
or local law, then the purchase shall be canceled or revised to 
comply with applicable law. 

(e)  Procedural requirements: Other specific procedural requirements necessary for 
accomplishing purchases in accordance with this Purchasing Ordinance shall be 
developed by the Town Manager or his designee. 

 

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 47 of 75



(f)   Public construction bond:  All Town  public construction projects that are estimated to 
exceed two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000), shall require that the contractor obtain a 
public construction payment and performance bond or other acceptable alternate form of 
security in accordance with § 255.05, Florida Statutes, as amended from time to time.  
The bond must be obtained, recorded in official records of Palm Beach County and copy 
provided to the Town prior to the contractor commencing any work for the Town.  The 
Town Council in its sole discretion may require public construction payment and 
performance bonds, other bonds and/or other security on any Town project estimated to 
cost less than two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000). 

(g)   Authorized purchases:  Any person authorized to make purchases under this Purchasing 
Ordinance shall make such purchases in accordance with the rules and regulations 
established in the Florida Code of Ethics for Public Officers and Employees, Ch. 112, 
Florida Statutes and the Palm Beach County Code of Ethics. 

(h)   Violations:  Violation of any provision of this Purchasing Ordinance may result in 
termination of purchasing authority and/or disciplinary action taken in accordance with 
the Town policies.  Any violation of this Purchasing Ordinance may also result in the 
Town Council refusing to ratify a purchase or in the Town Council rescinding its 
approval of a purchase.  Any person who knew or should have known that a purchase 
was made in violation of this Purchasing Ordinance may be held personally liable for that 
purchase. 

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 48 of 75



ORDINANCE NO. 2008-09

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATTCHEE
GROVES, FLORIDA ENACTING A NEW SECTION OF THE
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES CODE OF
ORDINANCES ENTITLED "BID PROCEDURES; PUBLIC
FUNDS" ADOPTING PROCUREMENT REQUIREMENTS;
PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR
CONFLICT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING
FOR EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, Town staff recommends the enactment of a new section of the

Town of Loxahatchee Groves Code of Ordinances related to procurement procedures;

and

WHEREAS, the Town Council deems it to be in the best interests of the

citizens, residents and businesses within the Town of Loxahatchee Groves to enact a

new section of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves Code of Ordinances as provided

herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL

OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA THAT:

Section 1. The foregoing "WHEREAS" clauses are hereby ratified and

confrrmed as being true and correct and are hereby made a part of this Ordinance upon

adoption hereof.

CODING: Words in strike through type are deletions from existing law;
Words in underlined type are additions.

Page 1 of23

DNT:js 10.27.08
F:\2008-09]rocurement_CodeREV I.doc

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 49 of 75



Section 2.

ORDINANCE NO. 2008-09

The Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves hereby

enacts a new section of the Code of Ordinances of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves,

Florida, entitled "Bid Procedures; Public Funds", to read as follows:

BID PROCEDURES; PUBLIC FUNDS.

A. Definitions.

For the purpose of this Division of the Code, the following
definitions shall apply unless the context clearly indicates or requires a
different meaning.

ADDENDA or ADDENDUM means written or graphic
instruments issued prior to the opening of bids which clarify, correct or
change the bidding documents or the contract documents.

BUSINESS LOCATION means a permanent office or other site
where the vendor operates, conducts, engages in, or carries on all, or a
portion of, its business. A post office box shall not be sufficient to
constitute a "business location".

CHANGE ORDER means changes, due to unanticipated
conditions or developments, made to an executory contract, which do not
substantially alter the character of the work contracted for, and which do
not vary so substantially from the original specifications as to constitute a
new undertaking. Such changes must reasonably and conscientiously be
viewed as being in fulfillment of the original scope of the contract rather
than as departing therefrom. Further, such changes, when viewed against
the background of the work described in the contract and the language
used in the specifications, must clearly be directed either to the
achievement of a more satisfactory result or the elimination of work not
necessary to the satisfactory completion of the contract.

CHIEF PROCUREMENT OFFICER means the Town Manager,
or his or her designee, who is responsible for the procurelnent of

CODING: Words in strike through type are deletions from existing law~

Words in underlined type are additions.

Page 2 of23

DNT:js 10.27.08
F:\2008-09_Procurement_CodeREV l.doc

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 50 of 75



ORDINANCE NO. 2008-09

commodities and services as well as the management and disposal of
commodities.

TOWN STANDARD COMMODITIES, refer to those situations
where the Town has determined that a pal1icular style, brand, make, or
model is the only type that meets the Town's requirements for
performance, compatibility or other salient characteristics.

COMMODITIES means personal prope11y, including but not
limited to, goods, supplies, apparatus, equipment, material and other forms
of tangible personal property.

CONTRACTOR means any person or business entity having a
contract with the Town.

COOPERATIVE PURCHASING refers to situations where the
Town participates in joint procurement of commodities or services with
other public entities within the state, in order to obtain lower plices
through greater purchasing volume.

INVITAT/ON FOR BID means a written solicitation for
competitive sealed bids with the title, date and hour of the public bid
opening designated therein and specifically defining the commodities or
services for which bids are sought. The invitation for bid shall be used
when the Town is capable of specifically defining the scope of work for
which a service is required or when the Town is capable of establishing
precise specifications defining the actual commodities required. The
invitation for bid shall include instruction to bidders, plans, drawings and
specifications, if any, bid form and other required forms and documents to
be submitted with the bid.

QUOTATIONS means unsealed telephonic, facsimile or written
bids for commodities or services.

REQUEST FOR LETTERS OF INTEREST means a written
solicitation for offers with the title, date and hour of the submission
deadline designated. A request for letters of interests shall include but is

CODING: Words in strike through type are deletions from existing law;
Words in underlined type are additions.

Page 3 of23

DNT:js 10.27.08
F:\2008-09_Procurement_CodeREV I.doc

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 51 of 75



ORDINANCE NO. 2008-09

not limited to, general information and submission deadline. The town
shall engage in competitive negotiations with responsible offerors
determined to be reasonably susceptible of being selected for award for
the purpose of clarification to assure full understanding of and
conformance to the solicitation requirements. Offerors shall be accorded
fair and equal treatment with respect to any opportunity for discussion.

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS means a written solicitation for
competitive sealed proposals with the title, date and hour of the public
opening designated. A request for proposals shall include but is not limited
to general information, functional or general specifications, a statement of
work, proposal instruction and evaluation criteria. All requests for
proposals shall state the relative importance of price and any other
evaluation criteria. The Town may engage in competitive negotiations
with responsible proposers determined to be reasonably susceptible of
being selected for award for the pumose of clarification to assure full
understanding of and conformance to the solicitation requirements.
Proposers shall be accorded fair and equal treatment with respect to any
opportunity for discussion and revision of proposals and such revisions
may be permitted after submissions and prior to award for the purpose of
obtaining the best and final offer.

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS means a written solicitation
for competitive sealed offers with the title, date and hour of the public
opening designated. A request for qualifications shall include but is not
limited to, general information, functional or general specifications,
statement of work, instructions for offer and evaluation criteria. All
requests for qualifications shall state the relative importance of the
evaluation criteria. The town may engage in competitive negotiations with
responsible offerors determined to be reasonably susceptible of being
selected for award for the purpose of clarification to assure full
understanding of and conformance to the solicitation requirements.
Offerors shall be accorded fair and equal treatment with respect to any
opportunity for discussion and revision of offers and such revisions may
be permitted after submissions and prior to award for the purpose of
obtaining the best and final offer.

CODING: Words in strike through type are deletions fi'om existing law;
Words in underlined type are additions.

Page 4 of23

DNT:js 10.27.08
F:\2008-09]rocurement_CodeREVl.doc

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 52 of 75



ORDINANCE NO. 2008-09

RESPONSIBLE BIDDER, RESPONSIBLE OFFEROR,
RESPONSIBLE PROPOSER means a person or business entity having
the capability in all respects to perform fully the contract requirements and
sufficient experience, ability, reliability, capacity, facilities, equipment,
financial resources and credit to give the Town a reasonable expectation of
good faith performance, determined solely within the town's discretion.

RESPONSIVE BIDDER, RESPONSIVE OFFEROR, or
RESPONSIVE PROPOSER means a person who has submitted a bid,
offer, or proposal that conforms in all material respects to the Invitation
for Bid, Request for Letters of Interests, Request for Qualifications, or
Request for Proposals, determined solely within the Town's discretion.

SERVICES means the furnishing of labor, time, or effoli by a
contractor, not involving the delivery of a specific end-product other than
reports that are merely incidental to the required performance. This term
shall not include employment agreements or collective bargaining
agreements.

SOLE SOURCE means that the commodities or servIces are
available from only one (1) responsible vendor.

SURPLUS PROPERTY means any personal property belonging to
the town, that is capable of being used but is in excess of the normal
operating requirements of the Town, or which is no longer used or which
has become obsolete, worn out or scrapped.

USING AGENCY means any depmiment, agency, commISSIon,
bureau or other unit in the town government using commodities or
procuring services as provided in this Division of the Town Code of
Ordinances.

B. Compliance required.

It shall be unlawful for any town officer or employee to purchase
any commodities or services or make any contract within the purview of
this division unless there has been compliance with the requirements of

CODING: Words in strike through type are deletions from existing law;
Words in underlined type are additions.

Page 5 of23

DNT:js 10.27.08
F:\2008-09]rocurement_CodeREV l.doc

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 53 of 75



ORDINANCE NO. 2008-09

this division. Any purchase made or contract executed contrary to the
provisions hereof shall be null and void, and the Town shall not be bound
thereby.

C. Competitive Bidding or Competitive Proposals
Required; Exceptions.

(l) A purchase of or contract for commodities or services that
is estimated by the Chief Procurement Officer to cost more than twenty
five thousand dollars ($25,000), shall be based on competitive bids or
competitive proposals as determined by the Chief Procurement Officer,
except as specifically provided herein.

(2) Only the following situations are exempt from the
competitive bid and competitive proposal requirements of this section:

(a) Emergency purchases. In urgent cases of
compelling emergency that require the immediate purchase of
commodities or services, the Town Manager is empowered to
waive competitive bidding or competitive proposals and authorize
the Chief Procurement Officer to secure by open market procedure
any commodities or services, notwithstanding the estimated cost of
the commodities or services.

(b) Professional services. Contracts for professional
services involving peculiar skill, ability, experience or expeliise,
which are in their nature unique and not subject to competitive
bidding or competitive proposals, are exempt from this section of
the Code; however, state laws, such as the Consultants'
Competitive Negotiation Act of the Florida Statutes, as may be
amended from time to time, to the extent applicable, shall be
followed.

(c) Town standard. commodities, single-source and
sole-source commodities or services. Town standard, single
source and sole-source commodities or services are exempt from
this section of the Code.

CODING: Words in strike through type are deletions from existing law;
Words in underlined type are additions.

Page 6 of23

DNT:js 10.27.08
F:\2008-09]rocurement_CodeREV1.doc

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 54 of 75



CODING:

ORDINANCE NO. 2008-09

(d) Disaster preparedness. Contracts for and purchases
of commodities or services that are made in contemplation and
preparation for and in response to the occurrence of a natural or
man-made disaster or civil unrest, where time or availability rather
than price is the controlling factor, are exempt from this section of
the Code.

(e) Utilization of other governnzental agencies
contracts. Commodities or services that are the subj ect of
contracts with the state, its political subdivisions or other
governmental entities, including the United States government, are
exempt from this section, provided, however, that this subsection
shall apply only if the contract expressly penuits or if the awarding
jurisdiction and/or the vendor agree to allow the Town to purchase
therefrom, and if either: (i) the commodities or services are the
subject of a price schedule negotiated by the state or federal
government or by competitive bid by another governmental agency
and not on any preference; or (in the price offered for the
commodity or service exactly equals or is lower than the
governmental contract from vendors awarded such governmental
contract. Where an award is made pursuant to this paragraph, the
terms and conditions agreeable to the town may be used in lieu of
those tenus and conditions of the contract with the other
governmental agency.

(:0 Cooperative purchasing. Cooperative purchasing
plans are exempt from this section of the Code.

(g) The following contractual services are not subj ect to
the competitive procurement requirement:

(i) Services involving special skill, ability,
training or expeI1ise which are in their nature unIque,
original or creative.

Words in strike through type are deletions from existing law;
Words in underlined type are additions.

Page 70f23

DNT:js 10.27.08
F:\2008-09_Procurement_CodeREV i.doc

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 55 of 75



CODING:

ORDINANCE NO. 2008-09

(ii) Academic program reVIews or lectures or
seminars by individuals.

(iii) Health services involving examination,
diagnosis, treatment, prevention, medical consultation or
administration.

(iv) Artistic servIces which are original and
creative in character and skill in a recognized field of
artistic endeavor such as music, dance, drama, painting and
sculpture, photography, culinary arts, fashion design and
the like.

(v) Performing artists and entertainers hired to
provide entertainment for the benefit of the citizens of
Loxahatchee Groves and the general public at any Town
facility.

(vi) Maintenance service of equipment. When
considered to be in the best interest of the Town and
recommended by the using department and the services to
be performed are by the equipment manufacturer,
manufacturer's service representative, or a distributor of the
manufacturer's equipment the services may be procured
without following the competitive sealed bid process.

(vii) Utilities including but not limited to electric,
water and communications.

(viii) Goods and services provided by not-for
profit organizations.

(ix) The foregoing enumeration of services
deemed to be exempt from the competitive procurement
requirements is not intended to be an exhaustive or
exclusive list. The Town Manager or his or her designee
may determine if a contractual service must be procured

Words in strike through type are deletions from existing law;
Words in underlined type are additions.

Page 8 of23

DNT:js 10.27.08
F:\2008-09]rocurement_CodeREV I.doc

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 56 of 75



ORDINANCE NO. 2008-09

through the competitive procurement process, if not
expressly indicated herein.

(x)

software.
copyrighted materials, except computer

(xi) Food, clothing and other prolTIotional items
purchased for resale or distribution to the public.

(h) Best interest of the Town. Purchases of, and
contracts for, commodities or services are exempt from this section
of the Code when the Town Council declares by a four-fifths (4/5)
affirmative vote that the process of competitive bidding and
competitive proposals is not in the best interest of the Town. The
Town Council shall make specific factual findings that support its
determination, and such contracts shall not be placed on the Town
Council's Consent Agenda.

(3) Any other provision of this section of the Code to the
contrary notwithstanding, Town purchasing shall be conducted in
accordance with applicable Florida law, including §§ 180.24 and 255.20,
Florida Statutes, as may be amended from time to time.

D, Competitive Bidding Procedure.

Procedure. The competitive bidding procedures below shall be
followed:

(1) Advertisement for bids required. Notice of the competitive
bid shall be advertised at least one (1) time in a newspaper of general
circulation within the Town, calling for sealed bids for the work to be
done under the proposed contract, at least ten (10) days before the bids are
due to be received.

(2) Surety.

(a) Bid deposits. When deemed necessary by the Chief
Procurement Officer, bid deposits or sureties shall be prescribed in

CODD\lG: Words in strike through type are deletions fi'om existing law;
Words in underlined type are additions.

Page 9 of23

DNT:js 10.27.08
F:\2008-09]rocurement_C'odeREV l.doc

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 57 of 75



ORDINANCE NO. 2008-09

the public notice inviting bids. Unsuccessful bidders shall be
entitled to return of such deposit or surety where the Chief
Procurement Officer has required same. A successful bidder shall
forfeit any deposit or surety required by the Chief Procuren1ent
Officer upon failure on its part to enter a contract within fifteen
(15) days after the award.

(b) Sureties 011 oerformance. For all competitive bids
seeking commodities or services in excess of two hundred
thousand ($200,000) dollars the Chief Procurement Officer or
appropriate staff person, shall include as a requirement of such
advertised bids a performance bond in the total contract amount.
The Chief Procurement Office, in his or her discretion, may require
such performance bonds for bids seeking commodities or services
in an amount of two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000) or less.
The Town Manager shall have the discretion to waive the
performance bond requirement in the event of an undue hardship
or emergency. Any bonding company used must be listed on the
United States Department of the Treasury's Circular 570.
Additionally, the bonding company must be rated at least "A,"
Class VI, by "Best's Key Rating Guide," published by A.M. Best
Company, and be authorized to do business in Florida.

(3) Addenda. Written addenda will be issued when changes,
clarification or amendments to the invitation for bid are deemed necessary.

(4) Bid opening procedure.

(a) Bids shall be submitted sealed to the Town Clerk
and shall be identified as bids on the envelope.

(b) Bids shall be opened in public by the Town Clerk or
designee at the time and place stated in the public notice.

(c) A tabulation of all bids received shall be posted for
public inspection.

CODING: Words in strike through type are deletions from existing law;
Words in underlined type are additions.

Page 10 of23

DNT:js 10.27.08
F:\2008-09]rocurement_CodeREV I.doc

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 58 of 75



ORDINANCE NO. 2008-09

(d) No late bids shall be accepted or opened, and, if
received after the date and time called for in the bid notice, shall be
retained unopened by the Town Clerk.

(e) Failure to properly sign bids may invalidate them
and they shall not be considered.

(D The bids opened shall contain a copy to be filed in
the Clerk's office.

(g) The Town reserves the right to waive any
irregularities in the bids, as determined by the Chief Procurement
Officer.

(5) Rejection of bids. The Town Manager and Town Council
may reject any bids, parts of all bids or all bids for anyone or more
commodities or services included in the proposed contract when the public
interest will be served thereby. The Chief Procurement Officer shall not
accept a bid from a contractor who is in default on the payment of taxes,
licenses or other moneys due the Town.

(6) Contracts shall be awarded to the lowest responsive,
responsible bidder. In determining the "lowest responsive, responsible
bidder," the Chief Procurement Officer shall consider:

(a) The prices contained in the bid.

(b) The ability, capacity and skill of the bidder to
perfOlID the contract or provide the service required.

(c) Whether the bidder can perform the contract or
provide the service promptly or within the time specified, without
delay or interference.

(d) The character, integrity, reputation, judgment,
experience and efficiency of the bidder.

CODING: Words in strike through type are deletions from existing law ~

Words in underlined type are additions.

Page] 1 of23

DNT:js 10.27.08
F:\2008-09]rocurement_CodeREVI.doc

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 59 of 75



ORDINANCE NO. 2008-09

Ce) The quality of perfonnance of previous contracts of
services, including, but not limited to, Town contracts.

CD The previous and existing compliance by the bidder
with laws and ordinances relating to the contract or service.

Cg) The sufficiency of the financial resources and
ability of the bidder to perform the contract or provide the service.

(h) The quality, availability and adaptability of the
commodities, or services to the particular use required.

0) The ability of the bidder to provide future
maintenance and service for the use of the sub;ect of the contract.

CD The number and scope of conditions attached to the

Ck) The overall cost to the Town.

(1) The best interests of the Town.

(7) Determination and Findings Statement. When the award is
not given to the most responsive, responsible bidder, a Detennination &
Findings statement shall be prepared by the Chief Procurement Officer
and filed with the other papers relating to the transaction.

(8) Tie bids.

(a) If the detennination of lowest responsive,
responsible bidder results in a tie, the contract may be split when it
is to the Town's advantage as detennined by the Chief
Procurement Officer.

(b) If the Chief Procurement Officer detennines not to
split the bid, the contract shall be awarded by first preference to

CODING: Words in strike through type are deletions from existing law;
Words in underlined type are additions.

Page 12 of23

DNT:js 10.27.08
F:\2008-09_Procurement_C'odeREV I.doc

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 60 of 75



ORDINANCE NO. 2008-09

businesses with drug free workplace programs as described In
hereinbelow and then by publicly drawing lots.

(9) Prohibition against subdivision. No contract of purchase
shall be subdivided to avoid the requirements of this section.

(10) Inspection of bids. Inspection of the Town's formal bids
and proposals shall be conducted in accordance with applicable Florida
law, including §l 19.07 and §120.53, Florida Statutes, as said sections may
be amended from time to time.

E. Competitive Negotiations. When the use of competitive
bidding is not in the best interest of the Town for a purchase of, or contract
for, commodities and/or services estimated to cost in excess of twenty-five
thousand dollars ($25,000), such commodities and/or services may be
purchased by competitive negotiations. A request for proposals, or a
request for qualifications, or a request for letters of interest shall be issued.
Adequate public notice of the solicitation shall be given in the same
manner as provided in Section D above. Other procedural provisions
applicable to the sealed bid process shall also apply. To assure full
understanding of and responsiveness to the solicitation requirements and
full understanding of qualified proposals or offers, discussions may be
conducted with qualified proposers or offerors who submit responses
determined to be reasonably acceptable of being selected for award for the
purpose of clarification and to assure full understanding of, and
responsiveness to, the solicitation requirements. The respondents shall be
accorded fair and equal treatment with respect to any opportunity for
discussion and revision of responses, and such revisions may be permitted
through negotiations prior to award for the purpose of obtaining best and
final proposals or otTers. The award shall be made to the responsible
proposer or offeror whose proposal or offer is determined to be the most
advantageous to the Town taking into consideration price and the
evaluation factors set forth in the solicitation. No other criteria shall be
used in the evaluation. A summmy of the basis on which the award is
made shall be included in the contract file.

F. Award of Contract.

CODING: Words in strike through type are deletions fi'om existing law;
Words in underlined type are additions.

Page 13 of23

DNT:js 10.27.08
F:\2008-09_Procurement_CodeREV l.doc

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 61 of 75



ORDINANCE NO. 2008-09

(1) Town Council approval.

(a) An initial purchase of, or contract for, commodities
or services, in excess of ten thousand dollars ($10,000), shall
require the approval of the Town Council, regardless of whether
the competitive bidding or competitive proposal procedures were
followed. However, emergency purchases as described in Section
C, shall not require advance Town Council approval. In such
emergency situations, the Town Manager may approve the
purchase or contract, subject to later ratification by the Town
Council. Emergency purchases are to be nlade only when the
normal function and operation of the Town would be hampered to
such an extent by submittal of a requisition in the usual manner
that it may effect the life, health or convenience of citizens.

(b) Purchases exceeding the sum of thi11y thousand
dollars ($30,000.00) in the aggregate shall not be purchased from
the same person or entity during the course of any fiscal year,
unless such purchases are first authorized by the Town Council.
The above provision shall not apply to purchases of utilities or to
ongoing contracts.

(2) Town Manager approval. A purchase of, or contract for,
commodities or services in an amount of twenty-five thousand dollars
($25,000) or less, shall require the approval of the Town Manager.

G. Town Attorney to review and approve form of purchasing
contracts.

The Town Attorney shall review all contracts awarded under this
Article of the Code and shall approve said contracts as to form prior to
their execution by the appropriate Town officials. Notwithstanding the
above, the Town Attorney, in his or her discretion, may approve form
contracts bearing a pre-printed Town Attorney approval, provided that the
provisions of the form contracts are not modified.

CODING: Words in strike tlli:ough type are deletions from existing law;
Words in underlined type are additions.

Page 14 of23

DNT:js 10.27.08
F:\2008-09]rocurement_('odeREV I.doc

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 62 of 75



ORDINANCE NO. 2008-09

H. Debarment and suspensions.

0) Authority and requirement to debar and suspend. After
reasonable notice to an actual or prospective contractual party, and after
reasonable opportunity to such party to be heard, the Town Manager, after
consultation with the Town Attorney, shall have the authority to debar a
person or entity for the causes listed below from consideration for award
of town contracts. The debarment shall be for a period of not fewer than
three years. The Town Manager shall also have the authority to suspend a
contractor from consideration for award of town contracts, if there is
probable cause for debarment, pending the debarment determination. The
authority to debar and suspend contractors shall be exercised in
accordance with regulations that shall be issued by the Town Manager.

(2) Causes (or debarment or suspension.
debarment or suspension include the following:

Causes for

(a) Conviction of a criminal offense incident to
obtaining or attempting to obtain a public or private contract or
subcontract, or incident to the perforn1ance of such contract or
subcontract.

(b) Conviction under state or federal statutes of
embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction
of records, receiving stolen property, or any other offense
indicating a lack of business integrity or business honesty.

(c) Conviction under state or federal antitrust statutes
arising out of the submission of bids or proposals.

(d) Violation of the Town's contract provisions, which
is regarded by the Chief Procurement Officer to be indicative of
non-responsibility. Such violation may include failure without
good cause to perform in accordance with the terms and conditions
of a Town contract or to perform within the time limits provided in
the town contract, provided that failure to perform caused by acts

CODn~G: Words in strike tlli'ough type are deletions from existing law;
Words in underlined type are additions.

Page 15 of23

DNT:js 10.27.08
F:\2008-09_Procurement_CodeREV I.doc

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 63 of 75



ORDINANCE NO. 2008-09

beyond the control of a paITI shall not be considered a basis for
debarment or suspension.

(e) Debarment or suspension of the person or entity by
any federal, state or other governmental entity.

(:0 False certification pursuant to paragraph (3) below.

(g) Any other cause judged by the Town Manager to be
so serious and compelling as to affect the responsibility of the
person or entity performing town contracts.

(3) Debarment and suspension decisions. Subject to the
provisions of paragraph (1), the Town Manager shall render a written
decision stating the reasons for the debarment or suspension. A copy of
the decision shall be provided promptly to the contractual party.

I. Availability of funds.

Except in cases of emergency, Town Manager or designee shall
not issue any order for delivery on a contract or any open-market order
unless and until the Town Manager, or his designee, certifies that there are
unencumbered funds available in the using agency's budget, in excess of
all unpaid obligations, to defray the cost of such commodities or services.

J. Open Market Procedure.

A purchase of, or contract for, commodities or services that is
estimated by the Chief Procurement Officer to cost one thousand dollars
($1,000) or less, may be purchased either in the open market, without
newspaper advertisement and without observing the procedures prescribed
by Section D above, or in accordance with the competitive bidding
procedure prescribed by Section D above, as deemed appropriate by the
Chief Procurement Officer. However, all such purchases of greater than
the estimated cost of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) but less than or
equal to five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) shall require at least three (3)

quotations by telephone. For purchases of an estimated cost greater than

CODING: Words in strike through type are deletions from existing law;
Words in underlined type are additions.

Page 16 of23

DNT:js 10.27.08
F:\2008-09]rocurement_CodeREV I.doc

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 64 of 75



ORDINANCE NO. 2008-09

five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) but less than twenty-five thousand
dollars shall require at least three (3) quotations in written form.

(1) Notice inviting quotations. When using the open market
procedure, the Chief Procurement Officer may solicit, or oversee the
solicitation of quotations by:

(a) Direct mail requests to prospective vendors;

(b) Telephone;

(c) Public notice;

(d) Facsimile;

(e) Internet

(2) Recording. The Chief Procurement Officer shall keep a
record of all open market orders and the bids submitted in competition
thereon and such records shall also be open to public inspection.

K. Inspection, Testing of Purchased Items or Services.

The Chief Procurement Officer shall inspect, or supervise the
inspection of, all deliveries of commodities or services to determine their
conformance with the specifications set forth in the order or contract.

(1) Inspection bv using agency. The Chief Procurement
Officer shall have the authority to authorize using agencies having the
staff and facilities for adequate inspection to inspect all deliveries made to
such using agencies under rules and regulations prescribed by the Chief
Procurement Officer.

(2) Testing. The Chief Procurement Officer shall have the
authority to require chemical and physical test of samples submitted with
bids and samples of deliveries which are necessary to detern1ine their
quality and conformance with the specifications. In the perfOlmance of
such tests the Chief Procurement Officer shall have the authority to make

CODING: Words in strike through type are deletions from existing law;
Words in underlined type are additions.

Page 17 of23

DNT:js 10.27.08
F:\2008-09]rocurement_CodeREV I.doc

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 65 of 75



ORDINANCE NO. 2008-09

use of laboratory facilities of any agency of the Town government or of
any outside laboratOlY.

L. Disposal Of.

(1) Disposal of property. The disposal of property requires
Town Council approval.

M. Change Orders.

(1) Town Manager's authoritv. Subject to the restrictions
contained in paragraph (2) below, the Town Manager is authorized to
approve and initial work on the following types of change orders
detennined in his/her judgment, to be in the public interest, as follows:

(a) All change orders decreasing the cost of the contract
to the Town that do not materially alter the character of the work
contemplated by the contract.

(b) A change order where the net change increases the
cost of the contract to the Town by an amount less than or equal to
five percent (5%).

(c) On a unit price contract, a change order consisting
of unit quantity increases at the unit price bid, which do not exceed
ten percent (100/0) of the original unit quantity for each line item.

(2) Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph (1)

above, the Town Manager is not authorized to approve a change
order without authorization of the Town Council where the sum of
all change orders issued under the contract exceeds five percent
(50/0) of the original contract amount.

N.
Contracts.

Term, Termination, Extension and Renewal of

CODING:

(1) Term.

Words in strike through type are deletions from existing law;
Words in underlined type are additions.

Page 18 of23

DNT:js 10.27.08
F:\2008-09]rocurement_CodeREV l.doc

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 66 of 75



ORDINANCE NO. 2008-09

(a) Unless otherwise provided by law, a
contract for supplies or services may be entered into for any
time period deemed to be in the best interests of the Town
provided the extension, if any, are included in the
solicitation and funds are available for the first fiscal period
at the time of contracting. Payment and performance
obligations for future fiscal periods shall be subject to the
availability of funds.

(b) Price Adjustment. Contracts may be
awarded with provisions of upward or downward price
adjustments provided this allowance is part of the original
bid solicitation and the adjustments are based on a
nationally recognized or published index or other criteria
acceptable to the Chief Procurement Officer.

(2) Termination. The Town Manager or his/her designee is
authorized to terminate any contract entered into by the Town when (s)he
determines that a party to the contract has breached or failed to perform
one or more of its obligations under the contract. Except in the case of an
emergency, where such advance notice is not possible, or where the
contract was entered into without Town Council approval, the Town
Manager or his/her designee must provide sufficient prior written notice to
the Mayor and each Council Member so that they can make any necessary
inquiries at the next Town Council meeting. When a contract is entered
into by the Town pursuant to Town Council approval and is terminable by
the town without cause, only the Town Council is authorized to telminate
the contract without cause. If the Mayor or any Town Council Member
desires that a contract be terminated without cause, he/she shall notify the
Town Manager in writing and request that the item be placed on the next
Town Council agenda.

(3) Extensions. The Town Manager or hislher designee is
authorized to extend, for operational purposes only and for a maximum of
one hundred eighty (180) days, any contract entered into by the Town
pursuant to Town Council approval. Any further extensions of such
contract require the approval of the Town Council.

CODING: Words in strike through type are deletions from existing law;
Words in underlined type are additions.

Page 19 of23

DNT:js 10.27.08
F:\2008-09]rocurement_CodeREV I.doc

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 67 of 75



ORDINANCE NO. 2008-09

(4) Renewals.

(a) General. When a contract is entered into by the
Town pursuant to Town Council approval and provides for one or more
renewals by affirmative action of the Town, the Town Manager may
approve such renewals only with the approval of the Town Council.

(b) Automatic. When a contract is entered into by the
Town pursuant to Town Council approval and provides for one or luore
automatic renewals unless one party notifies the other of its intent not to
renew, only the Town Council is authorized to decide not to renew the
contract.

(5) Employment contracts. The provisions of this section shall
not apply to the employment contract of the Town Manager.

(6) Application to existing and (ilture contracts. The provisions
of this section shall apply to every contract in existence on the effective
date of this section and every contract entered into thereafter.

O.
Programs.

Preference to Businesses with Drug-Free Workplace

(1) The Town hereby adopts by reference §287.087, Florida
Statutes, as amended, regarding bidding preferences for businesses with
drug-free workplace programs.

(2) Whenever two (2) or more bids which are equal with
respect to price, quality and service are received by the town for the
procurement of commodities or services, a bid received from a business
that certifies that it has implemented a drug-free workplace program shall
be given a preference, provided that the dlug-free workplace program
complies with §287.087, Florida Statutes, and any other applicable state
law. An announcement of this preference may be included in the bid
documents.

CODING: Words in strike through type are deletions fl.·om existing law;
Words in underlined type are additions.

Page 20 of23

DNT:js 10.27.08
F:\2008-09]rocurement_CodeREV 1.doc

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 68 of 75



ORDINANCE NO. 2008-09

P. Non-Discrinlination.

Vendor shall not discriminate against any person in its operations,
activities or delivery of services. Vendor shall affitmatively comply with
all applicable provisions of federal, state and local equal employment laws
and shall not engage in or commit any discriminatory practice against any
person based on race, age, religion, color, gender, sexual orientation,
national origin, marital status, physical or mental disability, political
affiliation or any other factor which cannot be lawfully used as a basis for
service delivelY.

Q. Non-Collusion.

A Bidder shall not collude, conspire, connive or agree, directly or
indirectly, with any other Bidder, film, or person to submit a collusive or
sham Bid in connection with the Work for which the Bid has been
submitted; or to refrain from bidding in connection with such work; or
have in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by person to fix the
price or prices in the Bid or of any other Bidder, or to fix any overhead,
profit, or cost elements of the Bid price or the Bid price of any other
Bidder, or to secure through any collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or
unlawful agreement any advantage against any other Bidder, or any person
interested in the proposed work.

Section 3. It is the intention of the Town Council of the Town of

Loxahatchee Groves, Florida that the provisions of this ordinance shall become and be

made a part of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves Code of Ordinances. The sections of

this ordinance may be renumbered or relettered and the word "ordinance" may be

changed to "section," "article," or such other appropriate word or phrase in order to

accomplish such intentions.

CODING: Words in strike through type are deletions from existing law;
Words in underlined type are additions.

Page 21 of23

DNT:js 10.27.08
F:\2008-09_Procurement_CodeREVl.doc

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 69 of 75



Section 4.

ORDINANCE NO. 2008-09

All ordinances inconsistent or in conflict herewith shall be and

are hereby repealed insofar as there is conflict or inconsistency.

Section 5. If any section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance is

held to be invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, then said

holding shall in no way affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance.

Section 6. This ordinance shall become effective upon its passage and

adoption by the Town Council.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF

LOXAIIAN:~~rS'FLORIDA ON THE FIRST READING THIS JJi"I
DAY OF· , 2008.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF
L010\HATCHEE GROV~, F.LORIDA ON THE SECOND READING THIS
~DAYOF ~ecenve( ,2008.

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES,
FLORIDA

ATTEST:

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:

\~\ ~lf)I\) ~ .
Mayor David Browning ~

2~~~Vice M or Herzog

~
Council Member Autrey

CODING: Words in strike through type are deletions from existing law;
Words in underlined type are additions.

Page 22 of23

DNT:js 10.27.08
F:\2008-09 Procurement CodeREVl.doc

- -

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 70 of 75



ORDINANCE NO. 2008-09

M~ (~nA-- ;~em-b----l-er~~/-
Office of the Town Attorney

CODING: Words in strike through type are deletions from existing law;
Words in underlined type are additions.

Page 23 of23

DNT:js 10.27.08
F:\2008-09]rocurement_CodeREV I.doc

FAAC Agenda Packet Page 71 of 75



FAAC Agenda Packet Page 72 of 75



FAAC Agenda Packet Page 73 of 75



FAAC Agenda Packet Page 74 of 75



FAAC Agenda Packet Page 75 of 75


	AGENDA
	June 30, 2014 MINUTES
	Municipal Financial System (SaaS) Tabulation
	Financial Activity
	BUDGET VS ACTUAL
	Bank Reconciliation
	CHECKS WRITTEN
	DEPOSIT DETAILS
	EXPENSES DETAIL
	BALANCE SHEET
	TRIAL BALANCE
	P & Z Invoices
	DRAFT Purchasing Ordinance
	Procurement ORDINANCE NO. 2008-09
	Reimbursements
	Fines Applied to Waste Pro



